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1. ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A. Acronyms and Abbreviations

AIA
AMRI
APVC

ASA
ASAL
BoM

CBPP

CEO

CNA
CS.APP
DUS
EAAPP
ECF

ERP

ESAMi
FFS

GAP
GCHERA

Gtz
HRi
iCWES
IPSAS
KALRO
KARI
KEPHIS
KEVEVAPI
KCSAP

MNLD
NPT
MoUs
MT
MTP
NACOSTI
NPT

NSRC
PCPB
PPR

RVF

SSSEA

ToTs
USAID-FtF

Appropriation in Aid
Agricultural Mechanization Research Institute
Agricultural Product Value Chains
American Society of Agronomy
Arid and Semi-Arid Lands
Board of Management
Contagious Bovine Pleu ro-Pneu m on ia

Chief Executive Officer
Competence Needs Assessment
Climate Smart Agricultural Productivity Project
Distinctness Uniformity Stability
East African Agricultural Prod uctivity Project
East Coast Fever
Enterprise Resource Planning
Eastern and Southern African Management Institute
Farmer Field Schools
Good Agricultural Practices
Global Consortium of High Education for Africa
German Development Agency
Gesellschaft ftir Internationale Zusammenarbeit
Horticulture Research Institute
International Conference of Women Engineers and Sciences
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)
Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Organization
Kenya Agricultural Research institute
Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Services
Kenya Veterinary Vaccines Production Institute
Kenya Climate-Smart Agriculture Project
Maize Lethal Necrosis Disease
National Peformance Trials
Memorandum of Understandings
Metric Tons
Medium Term Plan
National Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation
National Performance Testing
National Sericulture Research Centre
Pest Control Products Board
Peste des Petits Ruminants
Rift Valley Fever
Soil Science Society of East Africa
Trainer of Trainers
United States Agency for International Development - Feed the Future
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B: Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management - Members of Management directly entrusted with the
responsibility of financial resources of the Organization

Comparative Year - Means the prior period,
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Our Vision

Excellence in agricultural and livestock research towards transformed livelihoods.

Our Mission
To conduct agricultural research through application of science, technology and innovation to
catalyse sustainable groMh and development in agriculture and livestock Product Value Chains.

Organization Goal
To contribute to the growth of the agricultural sector through research coordination and

regulation; technology and innovation development; and catalyse transfer and utilization of
agricultural research outputs.

Our Guiding Core Values
KALRO will be guided by the following core values in its operations:

a) Customerorientation

The central focus of KALRO is to provide timely and responsive demand-driven research

interventions aimed at addressing the needs of the customers within the agricultural
sector. KALRO will achieve this by maintaining a culture that promotes responsiveness to
customer needs.

b) Professionalism

KALRO will uphold high standards of excellence in the provision of services to their
customers. One of the hallmarks of excellence is integrity and ethics in all areas of
operation. In this regard, KALRO research outputs and recommendations will adhere to
the highest standards of scientific rigour, ethics and sound evidence base.

c) Innovativeness

KALRO recognizes the need for innovation in order to be responsive to the agricultural
sector challenges. In this regard KALRO commits to develop flexible and integrated
solutions in-tandem with the needs of customers and stakeholders.

d) Collaboration

Given the multi-stakeholder interest that the agricultural sector attracts, KALRO is

expected to collaborate and forge partnerships for the development of the sector in
Kenya and beyond. KALRO will therefore endeavor to create beneficial opportunities for
agricultural research and development.

e) Environmentalconsciousness

KALRO will ensure that the environment is conserved while discharging its mandate.

O Integrity

KALRO is committed to ethical delivery of its mandate to all stakeholders.
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I. KEYORGANIZATIONINFORMATIONANDMANAGEMENT

(a) Backgroundinformation

The Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Organization (KALRO) is a State Corporation
established under the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Act, No 17 of 2013, with
perpetual succession, the power to sue and be sued in its own name and the ability to own and
alienate movable and immovable property. The organization is also governed by the provisions
of the State Corporations Act, Chapter 446 of the Laws of Kenya, an Act of Parliament providlng
for control and regulation of state corporations. KALRO falls under the Ministry of Agriculture
and Livestock Development, and is the country's principal national organization responsible for
research and technology generation on crops, Iivestock, soil and water management and their
socio-economics.

(b) PrincipalActivities

The Organization's mandate is to undertake, streamline, coordinate and regulate all aspects
of research in agriculture and livestock development, and promote the application of the
research findings, technologies and innovations. lts mission is to conduct agricultural
research through application of science, technology and innovation to catalyze
sustainable growth and development in agriculture and livestock product value chains.
In pursuit of this mission, KALRO seeks to acquire and contribute knowledge and
creative solutions that are participatory and client-oriented; holistic and system-
oriented; gender-sensitive and afFordable to its stakeholders.

(c) Key Management

The Organization's day-to-day management is under the following:
1. Director General
2. Deputy Director General (Livestock)
3. Deputy Director General (Crops)

(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30s June 2023
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were;

1. Directors
No. Designation Name
1 Director General Dr. Eliud K. Kireger
2 Deputy Director General-Livestock Dr. Evans Ilatsia
3 Deputy Director General -Crops Dr. Felister Makini

4 Director, Livestock Systems Dr. Kipkemoi Changwony
5 Director. Socio-Economics & Poliry Development Dr. Festus Murithi
6 Director, Knowledge Management. Dr. Karl Nyabundi

7 Director, Crops Systems Dr. Lusike Wasilwa
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2, Assistant Directors

No. Desiqnation Name
o Director, Natural Resources Management Dr. David Kamau
9 Director, Paftnership & Business Development Dr. Marqaret Makelo

10 Director, Planninq & Performance Contract Dr. Mumina Shibia
11 Director, Human Resources Management &

Administration
Mr. Benjamin Onyancha

12 Director, Finance & Accounts Mr. David Muriithi
13 Director, Supply Chain Manaqement Mr. Stevens Musewe
t4 Director, information Communication and

Technology
It4r. Salim Kinyimu

15 Director, Corporate Communication Ms. Virqinia Ndunqu
16 Director, Internal Audit Mr. Francis Lanqat
t7 Director, Security Services Mr. Dennis Khisa
18 Director, Property Management Mr. Henry Mbaluku
19 Corporation Secretary N4s. Patricia Ngutu

20 Director, Agricultural Research Funds lvlr. Henry Tanui

No. Designation Name
1 Assistant Director, Crop Systems - Production, Agronomy, Breeding

and Seed systems
Dr. Benjamin Kivuva

2 Assistant Director, Crop Systems- Health Dr. Zakayo Kinyua

3 Assistant Director, Livestock Systems- Production, Breeding and
Commercialization

Dr. Elkana Nyambati

4 Assistant Director Livestock Systems- Health Dr. Eric Mungube

5 Assistant Director, Socio-Economics & Policy Development- Socio-
Economics and Policy

Dr. Wellington
Mulinge

6 Assistant Director, Socio-Economics & Policy Development- Research
It4ethods and Analytics

Dr. Alice Murage

7 Assistant Director, Planning & Performance Contract- Planning,
lvlonitoring and Evaluation

Ms. Betty Cheroigin

8 Assistant Director, Performance Mana gement and

Quality Control
Mr. David Kipkoech
Nyamasia

9 Assistant Director, Partnership & Business Development- Business
Development

Ms. Lilian Kerio

10 Assistant Director, Partnership & Business Development- Partnership
and Resource lYobilization

Dr. Scholastica
Wam bua

11 Assistant Director, Knowledge Management- Knowledge and
information

Dr. Fredah l4aina

t2 Assistant Director, Natural Resources Manaqement - Environmental Dr. Michael Okoti

viilPage



KenW Agricultural and Liyestock Re*arch Otganization
Annual Repofi and Financial Shtemenb
br the year ended lune 34 2023

No. Designation Name
and Sustainability

13 Assistant Director, Finance & Accounts Ms. Ebby Musembi
t4 Assistant Director, Supply Chain Manaqement Mr. Amos Muqo
15 Assistant Director, Information Communication and Technology Mr. Simon Mulwa

16 Assistant Director, Human Resources & Administration- Human
Resources Manaqement

Ms. Gladys Wangia

17 Assistant Director, Human Resources & Administration - Training and
Development

Dr. Kepha Ombui

18 Assistant Dlrector, Corporate Communication Ms. Florida Maritim
19 Assistant Director, Internal Audit Mr, Stephen Kiqo

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements
. Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development
. The National Treasury and Economic Planning

(f) Organization Headquarters
Kaptagat Road, Loresho
P. O. Box 57811-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(S) Entity Contacts
Telephone : 0709 104 000, 0722 206 986181 0733 333 22314
Email : director@kalro.org
Website: www.kalro.org

(h) OrganizationBankers
1. Kenya Commercial Bank

P.O. Box 46950-00100
Nairobi
Tel No.020-2214878,

NCBA Bank Kenya
P.O. Box 44599- 00100
Nairobi.
Tel No. 020-4450882,

Co-operative Bank of Kenya Ltd
P O Box 48231 - 00100
Nairobi
Tel No. 020-2776000

2

3
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4 Stanbic Bank Kenya
P.O Box 30550-00100
Nairobi.
Tel No. 020-3268888.

National Bank of Kenya
P.O Box 72866-00200
Nairobi.
Tel No.020-2828000.

Absa Bank Kenya
Westend Building,
Off Waiyaki Way.
PO Box 30120 - 00100.
Nairobi.
Tel: +254 (20) 3900000. Cell: +254 (722) 130120. Cell: +254 (732) 130120.

5

6

(i)

0)

Independent Auditors
Office of the Auditor General,
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser
KALRO Legal Office
P.O. Box 57811 - 00200
Cellphone. 0709 104 000, 0722 206 986181 0733 333 223/4
Email : director@kalro.org
Nairobi
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II. THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Hon. Peter Weru Kinyua

Hon. Peter Weru Kinyua has extensive knowledge and experience in
legislation, corporate administration, management, public service,
finance and environment. He has a BSc. in Surveying from the
University of Nairobi, Accountancy from Strathmore College (Currently
Strathmore University) and Certified Environment Practitioner from
Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT).e is a
lead expert for the National Environmental Management Authority

(NEMA), and works as a Consultant in Environment Impact Assessment (EIA),
Consultant in Engineering Surveying for roads for various Road Contractors and
Engineering Projects, Consultant for AMREF in aid of Ministry of Health in acceleration
of Health-related Bills in Parliament and others in Youth Empowerment Programs,

Hon. Peter Weru Kinyua is appointed Member, Chairman KALRO BoM.

Prof. Walter O. Oyawa, PhD

ProF. Walter O. Oyawa is currently the Director General/Chief Executive
Officer of the National Commission for Science, Technology and
Innovation (NACOSI). He holds a PhD in Civil Engineering (Structural
Engineering), at Kyoto University, Japan, M.Sc. Civil Engineering
(Structural Engineering), at the University of Nairobi, Master of Tropical
Veterinary Science at the University of Edinburgh and a B.Sc. Civil

Engineering, at the University of Nairobi. He holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA), at JKUAT. He is a Registered Professional Engineer, Engineers
Registration Board of Kenya (ERB), Corporate member, Institution of Engineers of
Kenya (IEK), and Lead Expert, National Environmental Management Authority (NEMA).

Prof. Walter O. Oyawa is a member of KALRO BoM.

CPA Margaret Wamuyu
CPA Margaret Wamuyu is a professional accountant with experience at
different Boards and is currently pursuing a PhD in Finance. She is a

Certified Public Accountant and a Member of Institute of Certifled Public
Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK).

She also holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Nairobi and Bachelor of Commerce degree (First Class Honors) from KCA
University. She is a Senior Government Officer with a wealth of experience in
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Accounting, Performance Contracting and Public Financial Management. She is currently
worklng at the National Treasury and Economic Planning.

She represents, PS National Treasury and Economic Planning.

Ms. Clara W. Mwangi

Ms. Clara W. Mwangi is appointed as an Independent Member oF the Board
and Chairs the Finance and Administration Committee of the Board. She
has over twenty years' experience at Senior Management Levels with
International Educational Institutions and with a special focus in areas of
Finance, Human Resource and Administration.

She is a holder of a Bachelor of Education Degree (Kenyatta University) and has
attended various International Management Courses globally. Clara is currently serving
as a Deputy Director at a leading International School in the Region.

Ms. Teresia Wambui Karanja

Ms. Karanja holds a Master Degree in Plant Pathology. She heads the
Pathology, Weeds and Pesticide Advisory Services Branch at Plant
Protection Services Division. She is also a Board Committee Member of
Technical Registration of new pest control products and Audit
committees.

She represents, Principal Secretary, State Department for Agriculture, Ministry of
Agriculture and Livestock Development.

Mr, Johana K. Cheruiyot

Mr. Johana Kipkorir Cheruiyot is an appointed Member. He Chairs the
Audit, Risk and Governance Committee of the Board. He holds a

Bachelor of Science Degree in Animal Production and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Education. He has wide experience in leadership skills. Was
Chairperson for various Secondary Schools; County Executive
Committee Member in-Charge of Transport, Roads and Public Works
Narok County. Was Chief Officer also in Narok County Government.

Dr. Mukiri Wa Githendu
Dr. Githendu holds a Ph.D. in Agricultural Education from lowa State

University and an M.Sc. in Seed Technology from Edinburgh University.

He also holds HSC (Head of State Commendation). He is an appointed

a
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Member. He chairs the Research, Technical and Innovation Committee
of the Board.

Mr. George Ombua

Mr. Ombua represents Inspector General, State Corporations. He is a Member with no
voting rights.

Dr. EIiud K. Kireger, OGW

Dr. Eliud Kiplimo Kireger is the Director General/CEO of KALRO. prior to
this appointment, he served as the Managing Director/CEO of the Tea
Research Foundation of Kenya. Dr Kireger attained his phD in plant Eco-
physiology from the University of Wales, (UK), MSc in Genetics and Tree
breeding from University of Toronto (Canada) and a BSc in Forestry

from Moi University (Kenya). He has trained in conflict Management and Resolution,
Strategic Leadership, Company Directorship and Change Management among others.
He was an Appointed Member of the board of management of Kenya Agricultural
Research Institute (KAN) where he chaired the Audit committee. He is the secretary to
the KALRO Board of Management.
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1

II. MANAGEMENTTEAM

Dr, Eliud K. Kireger-B.Sc.; M.Sc.; PhD, OGW
Director General

Dr. Eliud Kiplimo Kireger is the Director GeneraI/CEO of KALRO. Prior to this
appointment, he served as the Managing Director/CEO of the Tea Research
Foundation of Kenya. Dr Kireger attained his PhD in Plant Eco-physiology from
the University of Wales, (UK), MSc in Genetics and Tree breeding from
University of Toronto (Canada) and a BSc in Forestry from Moi University
(Kenya). He has trained in Conflict Management and Resolution, Strategic

Leadership, Company Directorship and Change Management among others. He was an

Appointed Member of the board of management of Kenya Agricultural Research Institute (KARi)
where he chaired the Audit Committee.

Dr. Evans D. Ilatsia (BSc, MSc, Dr.sc.agr.)
Deputy Director General, Livestock

Dr. Evans D. Ilatsia holds a Doctorate degree in Animal Breeding and
Genetics from University of Hohenheim, Germany; a Master of Science degree
in Animal Breeding and a Bachelor of Science in Agriculture Extension from
Egerton University. Prior to his current position, he served as the Institute
Director, Dairy Research Institute where he led a team of scientists in

implementing over 22 research and development projects. Dr.sc.agr. Ilatsia is
an accomplished scientist who has (co) authored over 80 research publications including
refereed journal articles, conference papers, technical bulletins, reports and training manuals

and contributed to various policy documents. He also holds various academic supervisory roles

for post graduate MSc and PhD candidates in local and international universities

Dr. Felister W. Makini - B. Sc.; M.Sc.; PhD.
Deputy Director General, Crops

Dr. Felister Makini holds a BSc in Botany and Chemistry from the University of
Nairobi, Kenya and an MSc in Plant Pathology from Georgia State University,
USA. She also has a PhD in Plant Pathology from the University of Greenwich, UK

and has done several short courses in various fields. Prior to her current position,

she worked as the Deputy Director in charge of the Department of Outreach and
Partnerships at KARI. Recently together with others she published an operational

field guide to innovation platforms as the lead author.

2
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IV. CHAIRMAN'SSTATEMENT

The year under review marked the beginning of the first term for implementation of the
2nd KALRO Strategic Plan (2022-2027). The KALRO Board of Management (BoM)
ensured that conducive environment for the organization operations was improved and
maintained. This included the implementation and adherence to the new paradigm shift
based on the Government Bottom-Up Economic Transformational Agenda (BEIA)
through mainstreaming of the agenda in the development of the 2nd KALRO Strategic
Plan (2022-2027). The management facilitated sensitization of staff on the BETA
Agricultural Transformation and Inclusive Growth. In addition, the Board spearheaded
the implementation of policies that guided the annual activity planning and milestones
of the Organization. Subsequently, a performance contract with the Ministry of
Agriculture and Livestock Development was drawn and we committed ourselves to the
achievement of the set targets. I am pleased to report that we recorded commendable
achievements on the targets for the year. The organization will continue the course in
honing the adoption of the Agricultural Productivity Value Chain (APVC) approach for all
research programs and projects.

The period saw increased activities due to return to normalcy after the lifting of the
restrictions occasioned by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Board of Management
recognizes the fundamental role that the internal revenue generation plays in support of
research activities and capital investments in light of declining development funding
from the exchequer. The board took advantage of increased activity and improved rains
to enhance revenue generation through doubled efforts in strategic investments of
scarce resources. Therefore, AIA target from sale of farm produce was achieved and
exceeded buoyed by aforementioned BoM efforts. KALRO continued implementation of
Kenya Climate Smart Agriculture Project (KCSAP) and AgriFI Climate Smart Agricultural
Productivity Project (AgriFI CS-APP) Projects and support from the National
Government. The implementation was carried out through patnership and collaboration
which is one of our pillars. The BoM also ensured that the Organization's innovation
programs were developed and efficiently implemented in collaboration with sector
stakeholders, especially the county governments, industry and donors. The BoM will
sustain the pursuit of collaboration and partnerships as a strategy to maintain
sustainable investments in research to propel KALRO to play a significant role in
developing and disseminating technologies, innovations and catalyze knowledge sharing
in both local, regional and global markets,

With these achievement of the Organization's strategic objectives, the board will
endeavor to build considerable momentum to maintain these results in future. The
board in its wisdom will support the enhancement of stakeholder awareness for
increased and sustained support for agricultural and livestock research initiatives to
generate technology and innovation for enhanced production and productivity in
agriculture. This will ensure improved economic returns and livelihoods for farmers,
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attainment of food and nutrition security and employment through value addition. The
Organization recognizes the need for continual improvement of internal process
efficiencies in order to counter the challenges facing the agricultural innovation system
promptly, efficiently and cost effectively. Management has commendably accelerated
implementation of plans to address identified challenges through capacity building and
investments in technology.

Finally, KALRO management finalized the development of the 2nd KALRO strategic plan
202212027 after the expiry of previous one during the previous year under review. In
this regard, the management incorporated the BETA Agricultural Transformation and
Inclusive Growth and suppoted public pafticipation through stakeholder consultation
and feedback as required under the Constitution of Kenya 2010 after the Board of
Management. It is anticipated that the continued public consultation will strengthen the
eventual implementation and deepen good governance, promote transparenry and
foster accountability in the implementation of the new strategic plan.

I take this opportune moment to thank the Government of Kenya, development
paftners, collaborators, farmers, the KALRO Management and the entire stafF for
working hard to record these commendable achievements. Let us work even harder and
smart we build our beloved nation and the Kenyan people even more for next year,
under the BETA Agricultural Transformation and Inclusive Growth.

Hon. Peter Weru Kinyua
Chairman, ]GLRO BoM
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V. REPORT OF THE CHTEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Kenya Vision 2030 development blueprint is the desire for Kenya to become a knowledge-
based economy. Under the Government Bottom-Up Economic Transformational Agenda (BETA)
the Kenya Government is committed to Agricultural Transformation and Inclusive Growth.
KALRO Management recognizes the central role the organization is expected to play in the
generation technology, knowledge and skills support the envisaged economy for its growth and
competitiveness. The management therefore continue to apply this ideal in the implementation
of the projects planned for the year under review to instill the requisite technology, innovations
and knowledge in the agricultural sector which is KALRO's core business. To ensure quality
research, the management invested in its human resource through staff development and
welfare, both of which are meant to provide a conducive working environment, through
compensation and motivation of staff. This is in addition to the development and maintenance
of facilities in line with the country's research priorities. The research projects undertaken
during the year were aligned to the second KALRO Strategic Plan (2022-2027), The Fourth
Medium Term Plan (MTP 2023-2027) of Kenya Vision 2030, the Agriculture Sector Growth and
Transformation Strategy (ASTGS 2019-2029) and the Bottom-Up Economic Transformational
Agenda (BETA). Furthermore, research projects focused on the assessment, validation and
development of Climate Smart Agricultural (CSA) technologies identified along the Agricultural
Product Value Chains (APVC) in effort to mitigate adverse climate change.

KALRO management welcomed the increased activities due to return to normalry after the
lifting of the restrictions occasioned by the COVID-19 pandemic. This enabled researchers to
continue conducting various research projects activities with funding mainly from World Bank
and European Union and other development partners. During the period under review, the
Kenya Climate Smart Agriculture Project (KCSAP) and AgriFI Climate Smart Agricultural
Productivity Project (AgriFI CS APP) funded projects were the major continuing projects. The
Organization managed to achieve A.I.A totaling to over Ksh. 848.93Million up from Ksh. 797.53
Million in 202U22 due the prevailing favorable weather during the year under review. The
Management continued to apply the best practices by ensuring that funds allocated to the
Institutes were utilized for the programmes and activities for which they had been planned and
to provide excellent services for Kenyans. In this regard, the management facilitated Sensitized
50 employees in the five named Institutes and Centres (10 each) on the commitments and
standards stipulated in the service charter and trained 20 employees on excellent customer
service culture.

A major achievement during the year was the submission of 26 promising lines of different
crops to KEPHIS for NPI including flfteen (15) Sugar cane, eleven (11) maize, six (6) Sweet
potatoes, five (5) finger millet, four (4) each for sorghum, green grams, cassava and coffee;
three (3) each for Irish potato. rice, cowpeas, beans, cotton and ground nuts; hvo (2) each for
soya beans and wheat; one (1) each for sunflower and bambara nut. KALRO Developed four (4)
crops product profiles; developed and released foufteen (14) crop varieties; commercialized six
(6) crop varieties. \n 202L122 FY, testing of 22,828 soil samples was achieved through
collaborative linkages with the Counties and International partners. Further, five (5) soil surveys
for cha racterization and mapping were conducted for Busia, Trans Nzoia, Kericho, Vihiga and
Nyandarua; in addition to three (3) multi-purpose Iand suitability map surveys. Moreover, four
(4) technologies on food waste management were developed, ten (10) post-harvest losses for
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crops (Mango, pawpaw, citrus fruits, cassava, passion fruits, potatoes,
bananas, and various vegetables) were documented and four (4) pre
technologies to reduce food contamination and wastage disseminated.

maize, avocado,
and postharvest

In addition, the Adaptive Research Programme KALRO evaluated three (3) bio-pesticides and
and three (3) plant extracts for management of key insects submitted by PCPB and provided
the evaluation reports. KALRO also developed and promoted ten (10) crop health management
technologies and practices in addition to evaluation of 150 and 50 crops lines resistance to key
diseases and pests respectively. Analyzed 3,701 animal feed samples for their nutritive values
and provided feedback in terms of advice to livestock farmers and feed processors accordingly;
Disseminated six (6) climate smart and natural resource adaptation technologies, innovation
and management practices and six (6) energy saving environmentally sustainable technologies;
Packaged and disseminated eight (B) food safety technologies for Mycotoxin management;
Developed two (2) rapid diagnostic kits for MRLs, heavy metals, biological toxins; and produced
and availed to farmers 84 l'4T of Aflasafe KE01 for each quarter of the year under review.

On research knowledge sharing, over 120 papers from KALRO researchers were internally
reviewed for publication in renowned peer reviewed journals. Another 252 papers internally
reviewed for presentation in scientific conferences and some 95 Technical Notes were published
with 30 Extension materials developed/updated and availed to users. This offered an
opportunity to our researchers to communicate to farmers, the extension workers and other
stakeholders on the technologies available. A total of 498 stakeholder-training sessions farmer
training workshops, field days and demonstrations were held during the period under review. In
addition, ten (10) visibility materials were developed and disseminate the same through all
available media forums; 60 Agricultural Product Value Chain (APVC) and Innovation Platform
(IP) champions were trained. One hundred nfty (150) farmers were trained on bee husbandry
and other apiculture value chain nodes.

To ensure that farmers used improved crop varieties and livestock breeds around the country,
the Organization produced and sold 615.1 metric tonnes of basic seed (cereals, potatoes, grain
legumes and cotton) and availed to farmers. This also included 5,2879 million tea cuttings,
0.987 million coffee seedlings, 6,816 improved coconut seedlings and 40,080 cashew-nut
seedlings and 306,052 Fruit seedlings (avocado, sweet yellow passion, mango, grafted purple
passion, sunrise solo papaya and tree tomato) of improved varieties to enhance crop
production. On livestock production side, 296 breeding bulls and heifers of Sahiwal (milk and
beef) and Boran (beef production); 657,474 Indigenous Chicken chicks and 245 breeding boars
and gilts/sows and 303 bucks and rams; were produced and availed to farmers. To ensure
availability of quality livestock feed, the Organization tested 3,701 animal feed samples for
development of feed rations, produced and availed to farmers 16B.6MT clean napier grass
cuttings and 6,912k9 rangelands grass seed. Developed two (2) forage varieties,
commercialized three (3) forage varieties i.e. Enteropogon macrostachyus, Cenchrusciliaris
Ecotypes TW 1, MGD 3 and Chlorisrox burghiana and formulated eight (8) feed rations.

The management continued to ensure human resource development through the KALRO
Training Master Plan, by coordinating, monitoring and evaluating staff on PhD and MSc training
in both local and overseas universities as well as identifoing potential sponsors for the trainings.

xviill)age



I

Kenya Agrlcultunl and Llyestock Research Otganization
Annual Report and Flnancial SAEmenB
lbrthe yar ended June 3O 2O23

KALRO also provided 47 Youth Internships and 690 students' industrial attachment and
Apprenticeships during the period.

On behalf of the Management, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Govemment of
Kenya and our development paftners for the support they accorded to TGLRO during the
reporting period, This support ensured that the Organization met the set targets leading to a

commendable achievement of most of our Pefformance Contract targets.

Eliud Kiplimo Kireger (PhD, OGW)
DIRECTOR GENERAT
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vt. REvrEw oF KALRO PERFOMANCE FOR Fy 202212023

Section 81 Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the
Accounting Officer to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government
entity's performance against predetermined objectives.

KALRO has fve strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the FY 2018/2019-
202212023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar 1: Technologies and innovations for priority agricultural products value chains
generated and disseminated;

Pillar 2: Knowledge, information and technologies on priority agricultural products value
chains research collated, stored and shared;

Pillar 3: Socio-economics information, market and policy options supporting priority
agricultural product value chains generated and advocated;

Pillar 4: Organization's capacities and resource management strengthened;

Pillar 5: Systems for coordination, prioritization and regulation of research developed and
operationalized.

KALRO develops its annual work plans based on the above five pillars. Assessment of the
Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The organization
achieved its performance targets set for the FY 202212023 period for its strategic pillars, as
indicated in the table below:

Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

Pillar 1:
Technologie
s and
innovations
for priority
agricultural
prod u cts
value chains
generated
and
disseminate
d

1. To
improve crop
production,
productivity
and
utilization

No. of crop
varieties

developed

Develop
improved crop
varieties for
better nutrition
and industrial
development.

62 crop varieties were submitted to
KEPHIS for National Performance Trials
(NPT), 37 candidates are being evaluated
for distinctness, uniformity and stability
(DUS) upon which varlety release
indicators will be determined and 14

varieties have been released out of which
six (6) crop varieties have been
commercialized.

Technologies

developed

Develop good
agronomic
technologies
and practices for
priority APVCs

Analyzed 22,828 soil samples;
Conducted five (5) soil surveys,
characterizations and mapping (Busia,
Trans Nzoia, Kericho, Vihiga and
Nyandarua);
Conducted three (3) multi-purpose
land suitability map surveys.
Developed four (4) technologies on
food waste management;
Developed and promoted ten (10)

.

.
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

No. of disease

resistant crop
varieties for
food safety.

Technologies
developed for
pre and post-

ha rvest

crop health management technologies
and practices;

/i. Validated and promoted one (1)
organic farming technology;

ii. Tested and adapted five agricultural
machineries;

ii. Designed and fabricated five (5)
agricultural machineries/implements;

Improve and
maintain crop
health and food
safety

t. Developed and promoted ten (10)
crop health management
technologies and practices;
Evaluated 150 crops lines resistance
to key diseases;
Evaluated 50 crops lines resistance to
key insect pests.
Evaluated thirty-three (33) pesticides
submitted by PCPB and submitted
reports;
Evaluated three (3) bio-pesticides for
management of key insects;
Evaluated three (3) plant extracts for
management on pests.
Packaged and disseminated eight (8)
food safety technologies for
Mycotoxin managemenU
Analyzed 1583 food samples for
mycotoxin contaminants, Minimum
Residue Levels (MRLs), heavy metals
contaminants and biological toxins in
produce or products;
Developed two (2) rapid diagnostic
kits for MRLS, heavy metals,
biological toxins;
Produced and availed to farmers 84
MT of Aflasafe KE01 quarterly;
Validated and promoted one (1)
orqanic farminq technoloqv;

.

t.

v .

v t,

tx.

x

xl,

Develop pre and
post-harvest
handling and
storage
technologies
and practices

i. Produced and availed to farmers 84
MT of Aflasafe KE01 quarterly;

ii. Packaged and disseminated eight (8)
food safety technologies for
Mycotoxin management;

iii. Analyzed 1583 food samples for
mycotoxin contaminanb, Minimum
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

Residue Levels (MRLS), heavy metals
contaminants and biological toxins in
produce or products;

iv. Developed two (2) rapid diagnostic
kits for MRLs, heavy metals, biological
toxins;

v. Developed and promoted one bee
pest and disease management
technoloqy/ innovations;

Genetic

resources

conserved

Support plant
genetic
resources
conservation.

Regenerated and bulked 2909 against
a target of 500 genetic resources;
Carried out a study on plant
biodiverslty loss.

Disease free
planting

materials

Material
produced and
disseminated

Basic seed (cereals, potatoes, and grain
legumes) (Ml, 615.145, Tea planting
material (No. Millions), 2.624, Coffee
planting material (No. Millions), 0.263,
Seed cane production (No.'000' lt4T),
0.532, Cassava (No. Million),3.55, Sweet
Potato vines (No. Million), 16.69, Coconut
seedlings (No.), 6,816, Cashew nut
seedlings (No.), 40,080, Cotton basic seed
(ton) 11.03, lYulberry cuttings (No)
32,000, Macadamia 10,070, Fruit
seedlings(avocado, sweet yellow passion,
mango, grafted purple passion, sunrise
solo papaya, tree tomato, pepino melon,
Thorn melon and banana), 306,052

2.ro
improve
livestock
production,
productivity
and products
utilization

Develop
improved
livestock breeds

Develop

improved
livestock breeds

i. Evaluated and selected dams and
sires based on breeding values;

ii. Developed and implemented
online livestock recording schemes;

iii. Provided data on selected dams
and sires for performance evaluation
and pedigree recording of selected
dams and sires by Kenya Stud Book;

iv. Carried out two (2) assessments
to approve bulls for availing to farmers;

v. Carried out 50 inseminations using
Orma Boran semen;

vi. Availed 296 breeding bulls and
heifers to farmers;

vii. Availed 3,000 doses of Sahiwal
semen for storaqe and distribution by
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

KAGRIC.

vili. AvailedlT6 breeding bulls to
farmers.

ix. Produced and availed 303
breeding bucks and rams.

x. Availed fofi (40) camel breeding
bulls to farmers.

xi. Produced and availed 651,474
chicks to farmers

No. of forage
varieties
developed

Develop

forages,
improved feeds

and feedlng

systems

i. Developed two (2) forage varieties;
ii. Commercialized three (3) forage

varieties i.e Enteropogon
macrostachyus, Cenchrusciliaris
Ecotypes TVT 1, MGD 3 and Chlorisrox
burghiana;

iii. Analyzed 3,701 animal feed samples for
their nutritive values and provide
feedback in terms of advice to livestock
farmers and feed processors
accordingly;

iv. Formulated and disseminated eight (8)
feed rations and share with farmers.

Forage seed

Systems

developed

Develop a

robust and

sustainable
forage seed

systems

i. Produced 168.6 MT Napier grass

cuttings;
ii. Produced 6,912 kg Rangelands grass

seed against a target of 7,500 kg

No. of vaccines

developed

Improve and

maintain
livestock health

and food safety

i. Developed and validated four
vaccine candidates through; Bio-
containment testing of candidate sub-
unit vaccine for RVF, Camel pox and
PPR;

ii. Documented and disseminated of
field trial and confined animal trial
experiment findings of Contagious
Caprine Pleuropneumonia (CCPP)

modified vaccine;
iii. Conducted capacity building on

molecular techniques using gene-editing
tool on Camel mastitis vaccine
development;

iv. Conducted validation trials for a
commercial batch of thermos-tolerant
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicatorc

Activities Achievements

PPR vaccine in sheep and goats and
produce a dossier for registration of the
vaccine in the East African Region;

Evaluated two (2) vaccine samples
developed using irradiation facility i.e. in
development of a mucosal vaccine from
irradiated Gumboro virus combined with
I-2 Newcastle vaccine for use in
chlcken;

No. of
diagnostics
developed

Evaluated two (2) diagnostic tools.

Tests for
mycotoxins,
drug residues

and heavy

metals (in

feeds and food)
validated

Developed two (2) techniques for testing
Mycotoxins, drug residues and heavy
metals (in feeds and food) and availed to
farmers;

Number of feed
samples

analysed for
contaminants

Improve and

maintain

livestock health

and food safety

Analyzed 150 post-harvest animal
products samples for contaminants;

No. of value-
added livestock
products

developed

Support the
development of
processing and

value addition of
livestock
products

i. Developed Camel meat value added
product (Camel meat sausage);

ii. Developed Vacuum preserved camel
meat (Nyirinyiri' product);

iii. Developed one cow milk added
product (cheese).

iv. Developed two value added products
from honey, propolis and beeswax;

3. To
develop
appropriate
agricultural
machinery
and
equipment/i
mplements

No of
Machinery

acquired

deployed

Machinery

acquired
deployed
Improved
efficiency

v. Tested and adapted five agricultural
machineries;

vi. Designed and fabricated five (5)
agricultural machineries/implements;

vii. Established twelve (12) (Five farmer
groups, five individual farmers and 2
fabricators) linkages on improving
mechanization on four value chains;
Maize, beans, Cassava and sorghum
and availed the implements.
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Strabgic
Plllar

Objective Key
Petformance
lndicators

Activities Achievements

Pillar 2:
Knowledge,
information
and
technologie
s on priority
agricultural
products
value chains
research
collated,
stored and
shared

l,Promote
knowledge
and
information
management
and outreach

No of
Databases
developed

Collect and

collate KALRO

Knowledge

Information and

Technologies
(KITS) for
storage, ease of
retrieval and

dissemination;

i. Developed one (1) bee races
characterization manual;

ii. Developed (10) visibility materials and
disseminate the same through all
available media forums;

iii. The organization digitized it services
by:
a) Customer Relation Management

b) Bulk SMS

c) Agro Weather advisory Applications

No of
Mechanisms for
ease of
retrieval
deployed

Strengthen,
digitalize and
provide
innovative
library products
and information
services;

Digitized forty (40) agricultural value
chains platforms;

No of Digital
libraries

services In

place

Integrated, updated and
implemented agricultural
dashboards for analytics the
organization will develop one
dynamic database;

No of
Improved

Journals for
information
sharing

Sustain and
improve
publication of
the
organization's
peer reviewed
journals to
international
repute,
including the
East African
Agricultural and
Forestry Journal
and the Tea

Quarterly
Journal

i. Submitted 120 internally reviewed
papers for publications in peer reviewed
refereed journals;
ii. Developed 95 internally reviewed
technical publications;
iii. Submitted 252 papers internally
reviewed for presentation in scientific
conferences.

No. of Capacity

building
programs

No. of Counties
covered

Provide capacity
building services

within the 47

counties and in
the African

L

,

Conducted 498 Stakeholder
trainings on various crops and
livestock technologies;
Conducted 498 Stakeholder
trainings on various crops and
livestock technoloqies;
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Pet{ormance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

region in order
to enhance

synergy and

benefits from
agricultural
research and
products

t

t.

[.

Capacity built Lead farmers from 20
farmer groups on Livestock product
value addition;
Trained 150 farmers on bee
husbandry and other apiculture
value chain nodes;
Capacity built Lead farmers from
20 farmer groups on Livestock
product value addition;
Trained 60 Agricultural Product
Value Chain (APVC) and Innovation
Platform champions;
Established a hive production
workshop;
Validated and promoted one honey
processinq technoloqy;

Pillar 3:
Policies and
market
options
supporting
and
facilitating
priority
agricultural
product
value chains
developed
and
advocated

To generate
socio-
economics,
gender and
promotion of
Participatory
Research
Methods
information

No, of
Improved
information
generated and

shared

Generate and

promote socio-

economics

information;

L

lt.

Developed and updated 128 against
a target of 300 extension materials,
that include policy briefs, technical
bulletins, pamphlets, leaflets and
online library;
Developed and published
agricultural market information on
four (4) commodities namely
cassava, sorghum, coconut and
avocado;
Conducted economic analysis
studies in two institutes ABIRI and
SG&CRI and avail reports;

t

Pillar 4:
Capacity
building to
undertake
research on
priority
agricultural
product
value chains
strengthene
d

1. To
improve
human
resource
capacity
development
and
management

o/o of
Competitive
remuneration
package in

place

Develop a

reward and

recognition
system with an

attractive and

competitive
salary and

benefits
package

commensurate
with work
output;

Employee Performance Management -

this refers to the assessment of individual
employee's performance. It is based on
the negotiated and agreed peformance
targets that are drawn from the KALROT
annual work plan and the PC. KALRO

undertook the following:
a) Set individual employees annual

targets and completed the Staff
Performance Appraisal using the
prescribed format;

b) Undertook Staff Performance
Appraisal and compiled the
appraisal report for the previous
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Petformance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

year;
c) Implemented recommendations

emanating from the staff
apDraisal repofts.

No. of staff
trained

Learning and

development

through regular

short and long

term training
(technical and
operational) of
staff based on

identified needs;

i. Executed interventions to address
the identified skills gaps and training
needs through recruitment of 224 staff;

ii. Execute interventions to address
training needs through, capacity
building/training, coaching, mentoring,
Conferences, congress;

iii. Trained 2 sign language
interpreters;

iv. Allocated resources for
implementation of HIV, Non-
Communicable Diseases and mental
health interventions;

v. Promoted attainment of UI-IC at
the workplace through offering services
for HIV prevention, wellness promotion
for NCDs and mental health for at least
50% of staff and family members by:

a) Facilitating staff to access the
prescribed health screening
package for HIV, NCDs and
mental health;

b) Implementing the prescribed
sensitization package for NCDs;

c) Implementing the prescribed
sensitization package on HIV
Prevention;

d) Promoting mental wellness and
preventing mental health
illnesses.

vi. Submitted quarterly performance
repofts

Level Improved
Leadership
index

Develop

leadership and
management

skills in order to
meet the
corporate goals

while observing

a) Tracked compliance with the
commitments and standards in the charter
by;

i. Displayed the charter (in the
prescribed dimensions of 3'x 4)
prominently at the point of
entry/service delivery points in both
English and Kiswahili at Five Institutes
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

integrity and
good

governance;

and centres namely; Biotechnology
Research Institute (BIoRI), Non-
ruminant Research Institute (NRI),
Arid and Range Land Research
Institute (ARLRI), Sheep, Goats and
Camel Research Institute (SG&CRI),
KALRO Seeds Centre (KS) and Beef
Research Institute (BRI Garissa
Centre) with clear visible font size of
the content;

ii. Customized the service charter to
unique needs of customers by: -

a) Developing a customized
audio clip for the blind to
be played on television
screens at ICRI, HRI, KS

TRI, SRI and CRI;
b) Translating five, Institutes'

(BIoRI, NRI, ARLRI,
SG&CRI, and KS) service
charters to Braille;

c) Availing sign language
interpreters during
meetings and stakeholder
fu nctions;

d) Training two employees on
the use of Braille language
at the Headquarters'.

iii. Sensitized 50 employees in the
five named Institutes and Centres (10
each) on the commitments and
standards stipulated in the service
charter and trained 20 employees on
excellent customer service culture;

iv. Undertook the following activities
to track compliance with the
commitments and standards in the
cha rter:

a) Maintained records on
service delivery in all
q ua rters,

b) Maintained feedback
registers in all quarters,

c) Operationalized and
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Activities AchievementsKey
Performance
Indicators

StEtegic
Pillar

Objective

maintained the Customer
Relation Management
(CRM) system

d) Analyzed and compiled a
report on the feedback
and shared it with the
servlce roviders.

Increase

Internally
Generated

Revenue

through
commercializatio
nof
technologies,
products and

services;

Strengthening

the KALRO Seed

Unit (KSU);

Raising revenue

from royalties,
contract
research and

consultancies;

Kshs. (Million) 1,463.4
Scientists in all KALRO Research
Institutes Developed and submitted
to donors for small grant research
proposals for funding;

.

2.To
mobilize and
manage
financial
resources

Revenue
generated

i. Re-engineered two (2) service delivery
processes namely:

a) Customer Relation
Management (CRM),

b) KAOP- Big Data APP

innovation platform;
Trained BPR champions from
implementing depatments
application of CRM and Big Data
innovation platform;

ii. Implemented and monitored
reengineered processes;

. Submitted BPR Reports to PSTD u

the rescribed format rovided.

key
in

App

the

sing

Establish,

maintain and

manage

Information and

Communications
Technology
(rcr)

Cumulative o/o

to achieve a

Robust ICT

3.To improve
organizationa
lbusiness
processes for
effective
management
and
coordination
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievements

Support and

facilitate KALRO

Security Service

for effective
services

Security service

implemented
i. Implemented the annual Road
Safety Implementation Plan;
ii. Developed an Annual Road Safety
Implementation Plan based on the Road
Safety Policy with the following key
components included;

a) Eight (8) road safety activities
stipulated in the Work Place
Road Safety Policy,

b) Annual Motor vehicle
inspections of all the vehicles,

c) Training of drivers on defensive
driving,

d) Reporting on quarterly basis
using the prescribed Reportlng
Template the noncompliance
on road safety at the
workplace.

iii. Submitted quarterly reports to
NTSA in the prescribed format within
15 days after the end of a quarter;

4.To
enhance
collaboration
and
partnerships

No. of
collaborative
initiatives

Build and

maintain

collaborations
with other NARS

such as

universities,

county
governments,

NGOs, agro-
industry,

commercially-
oriented farms,
and

international

organizations

Held 130 against a target of 150
consultative fora as follows; -

a) Institute based research
priority setting fora based on
their Agricultural Product Value
Chains (APVC) mandate;

b) Engagements with strategic
partners including the youth;

c) Research coordination forums
(i.e. project steering committee
meetings).

No. of linkages

with Country
Governments

Establish and

maintain
linkages with
County

The organization enhanced its
collaboration with Counties through:

a) MOUS
b) Analyzed 22,828 samples of Soil,

plant and fertilizer
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St rtegic
llllar

Objective Key
Performance
Indicatorc

Activities Achievements

Governments c) Conducted 498
trainings on various
livestock technoloqies

Stakeholder
crops and

1,1

h

{t
rf,
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TECH NICAL RESEARCH PROGRAM M E ACHIEVEM EN T Sz Fy I 2022 I 2O23

The year recorded significant achievements in various projects under crops and Livestock
Research. Presented below is the summary of the key achievements for the Fy 2o22lzoz3 as
per the set Performance Contracting document.

Improved crop production, productivity and utilization

Development of improved crop varieties
During the FY the following activities were undertaken targeting release of varieties of various
crops:

i) Compiled an inventory of promising lines /clonal introductions;
ii) Submitted promising lines to KEPHIS for evaluation in National Performance Trials

(NPTs) as follows; sweetpotatoes-6, soyabeans-2, maize-11, Irish potato-3, rice_3,
cowpeas-3, sorghum-4 and ground nuts-3, cassava-4, beans-3, wheat_2, cotton_3,
green grams-4, sunffower-l, bambara nut-1, finger millet-S, coffee-4, sugar_15;iii) undertook trials for Distinctness, Uniformity and stability (DUS) 

- 
process for

sweetpotatoes-4, soyabeans-2, maize-2, rice-3, cowpeas-1, sorghum_2, beans-1,
beans-1, wheat-2, sunflower-l, Irish potato-2, sugat-7;

iv) Developed four (4) crops product profiles;
v) Developed and released fourteen (14) crop varieues against as target of 30 hence the

negative variance;
vi) Commercialized six (6) crop varieties.

Production of crops' planting materials
KALRO produced planting materials of various crops species and sold to farmers and seed
companies for planting, multiplication and commercialization as shown in table 1 below.

Table 1: Production of cro s' lantin materials

Basic seed (cereals, Dotatoes, and qrain legumes) (MT), 615.145
Tea plants and cuttings (Millions), 5.2879
Coffee planting material (No. Millions ), 0.987
Seed cane production (No.'000' Mr), 2.147
Cassava (No. Million), 3.55
Sweet Potato vines (No. Million), 16.69
Coconut seedlings (No.), 5816
Cashew nut seedlings (No.), 40080
Cotton basic seed (ton) 11.03
Mulberry cuttings (No) 32,000

uce 200,000 Fruit seedlings (avocado, sweet yellow
passion, mango, grafted purple passion, sunrise solo papa
tree tomato

Prod

Ya,
306,052

Macadamia (No) 10,070
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pre-and-Post-Harvest Handling and storage Practices Technologies and Promoted
During the FY, the following were the achievements:

i) Developed four (4) technologies on food waste management;

iD Documented ten (10) post-harvest losses for crops (Mango, pawpaw, citrus fruits,

cassava, passion fruits, potatoes, maize, avocado, bananas, and various vegetables);

iii) Disseminated four (4) pre and postharvest technologies to reduce food

contamination and wastage.

Improve and maintain crop health and food safety

Devetop Crop health management technologies and practices

During the FY: -
it Developed and promoted ten (10) crop health management technologies and

practicesi
ii) Evaluated 1,836 against a target of 3,000 samples of insects' pests and diseases

diagnosed and management recommendations given;

iii) Established one monitoring and early warning pest and disease protocol;

iv) Evaluated 150 crops lines resistance to key diseases;

v) Evaluated 50 crops lines resistance to key insect pests.

Evaluation of Pesticides for Crop Pest Management

KALRO is licensed by Pest Control and Poisons Board (PCPB) to undertake efficary trials for
new pesticide products introduced in the country alongside other organization. All thirty-three
(33) pesticides submitted to KALRO for efficary were evaluated and reports done and given to

PCPB. KALRO undertook:
i) Evaluated all pesticides submitted by PCPB and submitted reports;

il) Evaluated three (3) bio-pesticides for management of key insects;
iii) Evaluated three (3) plant extracts for management on pests.

Validate and Promote Organic farming

During the FY 2022123 KALRO:

i) Disseminated the evaluation findings of six (6) bio-fertilizers;
ii) Validated and promoted one (1) organic farming technology (system comparison)'

Consen ation, and promotion of Plant Genetic Resources
KALRO maintains a National Gene bank of over 46,000 accessions of different crop species

cotlected from all over the country. In addition, the Genebank preserves the world simsim and

finger millet germplasm collection. There is need to continue with collection and preservation of
indigenous crop germplasm.

During the FY 2022123 KqLRO: -

i) Regenerated and bulked 2909 against a target of 500 genetic resources;

ii) Carried out a study on plant biodiversity loss.
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Develop Appropriate Agricultural Machanery and Equipment/implements

In support of development and up scaling of agro-processing equipment/implements, KALRO
will undertake agricultural mechanization research to determine appropriate agricultural
machinery and their level of efficienry at farm level. During the F-'( 2022123, KALRO: -

i) Tested and adapted five agricultural machineries;
ii) Designed and fabricated five (5) agricultural machineries/implements;
iii) Established twelve (12) (Five farmer groups, five individual farmers and 2

fabricators) linkages on improving mechanization on four value chains; Maize,
beans, Cassava and sorghum and availed the implements.

Development, validation and promotion of food safety technologies

During the
i)

ii)

iii)
iv)
v)

FY 2022123 KALRO:
Packaged and disseminated eight (8) food safety technologies for lvycotoxin
management;
Analyzed 1583 food samples for mycotoxin contaminants. Minimum Residue Levels
(MRLs), heavy metals contaminants and biological toxins in produce or products;
Developed two (2) rapid diagnostic kits for MRLs, heavy metals, biological toxins;
Produced and availed to farmers 84 MT of Aflasafe KE01 quaterly;
Conducted ten (10) awareness creation fora on food safety (Aflasafe N4RLs, Heavy
It4etals, biological toxins contamination and biological toxins) in Machakos, Trans
nzoia, Uasin Gishu, Tharaka Nithi and Bomet counties.

Soil Analysis and Recommendations

KALRO undertakes soil analysis to enhance food productivity through targeted fertilizer
application to speclfic soil requirements. KALRO undertook the following: -

i) Awareness creation on soil analysis and the availabillty of the services, the
organization will hold 2 meetings per county to promote soil analysis services in
each of the following flve (5) Counties (Busia, Trans Nzoia, Kericho, Vihiga and
Nyandarua);

ii) Analyzed 22,828 against 27,000 soil samples;
iii) Conducted five (5) soil surveys, characterizations and mapping (Busia, Trans Nzoia,

Kericho, Vihiga and Nyandarua);
iv) Conducted three (3) multi-purpose land suitability map surveys.

Develop and promote climate change adaptation and mitigation technologies

During the FY 2022123 the following was achieved:
i) Disseminated six (6) climate smart and natural resource adaptation technologies,

innovation and management practices;
ii) Disseminated six (6) energy saving environmentally sustainable technologies;
iii) Distributed, planted and nurtured 236,390 tree seedlings to enhance national tree

cover.
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Improve tivestock production, productivity and product utilization

Breeding Bulls
Sahiwal (;ilk and beef) and Boran (beef production) cattle breeds are tolerant to a wide range

of climatic conditions and diseases that limit dairy and beef production in the country. The use

of Sahiwal and Boran bulls to improve local breeds will go a long way in improving milk and

beef production in Kenya. In the FY 202212023, KALRO:

i) Evaluated and selected dams and sires based on breeding values;

ii) Developed and implemented online livestock recording schemes;

iiD provided data on selected dams and sires for performance evaluation and pedigree

recording of selected dams and sires by Kenya Stud Book;

iv) Carried out two (2) assessments to approve bulls for availing to farmers;

v) Carried out 50 inseminations using Orma Boran semen;

vi) Availed 296 breeding bulls and heifers to farmers;

vii) Availed 3,000 doses of Sahiwal semen for storage and distribution by KAGRIC.

Breeding Bucks and Rams

Goats and sheep are critical livestock for food and nutrition security in the Arid and Semi-Arid

Lands (ASALs) of the country. KALRO researches and produces high quality breeding bucks and

rams for availing to farmers. During the contract period FY 2022123, KALRO availed 303

breeding bucks and rams against a target 270.

Breeding camel
In support of food security in the ASAL areas, the organization availed forty (40) against a

target of twenty (20) camel breeding bulls to farmers.

Improved indigenous chicken
Chiiken play an important role in the rural communities as a source of protein delicary and

cash from the sale of eggs and meat'
In the FY, 65t,474 chicks were produced, against a target of 650,000; thus a positive variance

of 1,474.

Improved breeding boars and sows
With the increased demand for pigs' product and the growth in the industry. KALRO availed

245 breeding boars and sows against a target of 160.

Support the development of processing and value addition of livestock
products
in2022123 FY, KALRO:

i) Developed Camel meat value added product (Camel meat sausage);

ii) Developed Vacuum preserved camel meat (Nyirinyiri' product);

iii) Capacity built Lead farmers from 20 farmer groups on Livestock product value

addition;
iv) Developed one cow milk added product (cheese)'
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Improved Honey Production
ln 2022123 FY the Organization: -

i) Trained 150 farmers on bee husbandry and other apiculture value chain nodes;ii) Developed two value added products from honey, propolis and beeswax;
iii) Established a hive production workshop;
iv) Validated and promoted one honey processing technology;
v) Developed and promoted one bee pest and disease management technology/

innovations;
vi) Developed one (1) bee races characterization manual.

Develop, Promote Forages and Improved Feeds and Feeding Systems
In the FY 2022123, KALRO:

i) Developed two (2) forage varieties;
ii) Commercialized three (3) forage varieties i.e, Enteropogon macrostachyus,

Cenchrusciliaris EcotypesTfi 1, MGD 3 and Chlorisrox burghian4iii) Formulated eight (8) feed rations;
iv) Analyzed 3,701 animal feed samples for their nutritive values and provide

feedback in terms oF advice to livestock farmers and feed processors
accordingly.

Improve and Maintain Livestock Health and food health technologies
During the FY 2022123, KALRO had targeted vaccine development, testing and strategic use as
key factors in maintenance of animal disease-free zones. In n 2022123, KALRO:

i) Developed and validated four vaccine candidates through; Bio-containment testing
of candidate sub-unit vaccine for RVF, Camel pox and ppR;

ii) Documented and disseminated of field trial and confined animal trial experiment
findings of Contagious Caprine Pleuropneumonia (CCpp) modified vaccine;

iii) Conducted capacity building on molecular techniques using gene-editing tool on
Camel mastitis vaccine development;

iv) Conducted clinical trial for contagious caprine pleuro-pneumonia (cCpp) vaccine
and use ILRI infection model for goats;

v) Conducted validation trials for a commercial batch of thermos-tolerant PPR vaccine
in sheep and goats and produce a dossier for registration of the vaccine in the East
African Region;

vi) Evaluated two (2) vaccine samples developed using irradiation facility i.e in
development of a mucosal vaccine from irradiated Gumboro virus combined with I-2
Newcastle vaccine for use in chicken;

vil) Analyzed 150 post-harvest animal products samples for contaminants;
viii) Developed two (2) techniques for testing Mycotoxins, drug residues and heavy

metals (in feeds and food) and availed to farmers;
ix) Carried out two (2) surveillances and advisories on zoonotic diseases;
x) Evaluated two (2) diagnostic tools.

Develop Robust and Sustainable Forage Seed Systems
Developed and promoted improved feeds and feed systems, KALRO produced clean napier
grass cuttings and rangelands grass seed as follows: -
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i) Produced 168.6 MT Napier grass cuttings;
ii) Produced 6,912 kg Rangelands grass seed against a target of 7,500 kg.

Develop and promote emerging livestock including beneficial insects
KALRO develops and promotes emerging livestock including beneficial insects. In the FY

2022123 the following were undertaken:
i) Promoted two (2) species of athropods (black soldier fly and crickets) for food and

feed supplement and availed them to farmers;
ii) Developed a database for sources of insect biomaterial innovation;

iii) Developed five (5) human food packs with insects as protein source.

Knowledge, information and technologies on agricultural products value
chains research collated, stored and shared

Promotion of knowledge, information and technologies
During the FY, the following activities were undertaken under the performance target:

a) conducted 498 stakeholder-training sessions on various crops and livestock

husbandry practices throughout the country;
b) Developed (10) visibility materials and disseminated the same through all available

media forums;
c) Digitized forty (40) agricultural value chains platforms;

d) Trained 60 Agricultural Product Value chain (APVC) and Innovation Platform

champions;
e) Held 130 against a target of 150 consultative fora as follows; -

a) Institute based research priority setting fora based on their Agricultural
Product Value Chains (APVC) mandate;

b) Engagements with strategic partners including the youth;
c) Research coordination forums (i.e. project steering committee meetings).

Research Proposals and Publications
To enhance research funding and ensure research flndings are shared with stakeholders on

timely basis, KALRO undertook the following activities
i) Developed and updated 128 against a target of 300 extension materials,

that include policy brieft, technical bulletins, pamphlets, leaflets and

online library;
ii) Developed and published agricultural market information on four (4)

commodities namely cassava, sorghum, coconut and avocado;

iii) Conducted economic analysis studies in two institutes ABIRI and

SG&CRI and avail reporb;
iv) Integrated, updated and implemented agricultural dashboards for

analytics to one dynamic database;
v) Submitted 120 against a target of 200 internally reviewed papers for

publications in peer reviewed refereed journals;

vi) Submitted 252 against a target of 200 papers internally reviewed for
presentation in scientifi c conferences;

vii) Developed 95 against a target of 250 internally reviewed Technical
Notes.
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Project Completion rate
In the FY, KALRO undertook the following activities:

Table 2: ect Com

Science, Technology and Innovation (STI) mainstneaming

In2022l23FY, KALRO: -
i) Developed or implemented the institutional STI mainstreaming strategy using the

template provided on NACOSTI's website;
ii) Developed and implemented annual work plan for institutional STI mainstreaming;
iii) Submitted quarterly and annual reports to NACOfi using the fi mainstreaming

reporting template provided on NACOSTI's website.

1 Office Block Construction Ol- Joro Orok
2 Office Block Construction Olo Sentu Sub- Centre
3 Staff Houses Rehabilitation KALRO
4 Construction of hatchery house at

NRI Kakame a

Hatchery constructed NRI Kakamega

5 Election of an irrigation system at
KALRO OI- Joro Orok

Irrigation System
installed

Ol- Joro Orok
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VII. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Overview

The Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research (KALR) Act, No 17 of 2013 established the

Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Organization (KALRO) as a consequence, Kenya

Agricultural Research Institute (KARI), Kenya Sugar Research Foundation (KESREF), Tea

Research Foundation of Kenya (TRFK) and the coffee Research Foundation (cRF) were

merged. The Organization consists of the Board of Management and a Secretariat which

implements Board decisions. The Act further established 16 Research Institutes which focus

on different thematic research areas. KALRO complies fully and strictly with all requirements

of the regulatory and other non-commercial entities in Kenya including clarity of financial

reporting and accountability to the public (citizens and stakeholders) and aims to set best

practice standards in agricultural research and fair conduct towards its staff, suppliers and

general public.

The KALRO Board of Management held 19 Board meetings during the period under review. A

schedule of the board meetings held and attendance by members is attached herein. The Board

has a board chafter; new members are issued with a copy upon joining the board. The process

of appointment and removal of board members is outlined in the KALR Act Sections 6,7 and 8.

Further, the roles and functions of the Board are listed under Section 9 of the KALR Act. The

Board ensures that a performance evaluation is conducted annually and results therefrom

discussed. The Board's remuneration is guided by the Guidelines for Terms and Conditions of

Service for Chancellors of Public Universities, Board Chairpersons, Board Members and Staff of

State Corporations. New members are taken through induction by being issued with copies of

the KALR Act, Strategic Plan, Board Charter, main organizational policies and a presentation on

the Organizatlon which is done by the Director General. Training for Board Members is

conducted from tlme to time on a need basis.

Organization structure

KALRO is governed by a Board of Management as per the KALR Act No. 17 of 2013, while the

day to day management is vested in the Director General who is the secretary to the Board.

The object and function for which the organization is established is to:

a). Promote, streamline, coordinate and regulate all research in crops, livestock,

genetic resources and biotechnology in Kenya;

b). Promote, streamtine, coordinate and regulate research in crops and animal

diseases; and

c). Expedite equitable access to research information, resources and technology

and promote the application of the research findings and technology in the field

of agriculture.
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Appointment of the Board

The Board is appointed pursuant to the provisions of KALRo Act No u of 2013. The chairman
of the Board is appointed by the president of the Republic of Kenya. Members of the Board are
appointed by the cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development on
recommendation of various nominating institutions provided under the KALR Act.

Board Organization and Structures

The composition of the KALRO Board of Management consists ofa) Chairperson appointed by the president;
b) The Principal secretary in the Ministry for the time being responsible for agriculture;c) The Principal Secretary in the Ministry for the time being responsible for fiiance;d) The Principal Secretary for the time being responsible for livestock;e) The secretary to the science council appointed under paragraph 6 of the second

Schedule to the Science and Technology Act;
f) Five persons appointed by the Cabinet Secretary, of whom

i) One represents the interests of farmers;
ii) One shall represent the interest of the general public;
iii) One shall be a representative of an institution of higher learning;iv) Two persons co-opted by the Board, who may be non-citizen scientists in the

field of agriculture and who possess such knowledge and experience as may be
necessary for the better carrying out of the functions of the Board; andv) The Director General appointed in accordance with Section 14.

Role of the Board of Management

The Board provides organizational strateglc direction and oversight to management as provided
in the KALR Act which states that the functions of the Board of N4anagement-of KALRO shall be:a) Carry out the objects and functions of the Organization;
b) Advise the cabinet secretary on Matters of poliry relating to agricultural research;c) Oversee the effective co-ordination of the operations of [he Organization;d) Ensure that the activities of the organization are consistent with the poliry and

objectives of the government, and the national priorities relating to agriculture and
agricultural research;

e) Approve, oversee and evaluate on a continuing basis the programs being implemented
by the Organization;

F) Direct strategic research and policy and prioritize and determine the research agenda;
s) co-operation with other lead agencies and organizations in carrying out agricultiural

research;
h) Development of an economic, efficient and cost effective internal management

structure, strategic Annual plan of the Organization;
i) Implementation and fulfilment of the polices and agreed objectives, performance targets

and service standards of the Organization;
i) Provision of advice as required on all matters within the responsibility of the

Organization; and
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k) Perform such other functions as may be necessary for the exercise of its powers under

the Act.

Board Meetings

The Board and its Committees'are required to meet not less than four times in any calendar

year and not more than four months shall lapse between the date of one meeting and the date

of the next meeting. In addition to the regular Board meetings, there may be other-special

meetings to deal w'rih specific matters. During the financial year under review the KALRO BoM

held meetings as per attendance repot Table below;

l{ames of Members Board Meetings Board Committee MeetinEs
Research,
Technical

&
Innovation

Finance &
Administration

Audit, Risk
&

Governance

Scheduled Special Scheduled Scheduled Special Scheduled

4 1 4 4 0 4

Hon. Peter W. Ki ua

Mr. Wilfred C. Rotich 1 1

Ms. Mary Mwambia 1 1 1 1

Ms. Clara W. Mwangi 1 1 2

Dr. Samuel N. Mburu 1 1

Dr. Mukiri Wa Githendu 2 3 2

Mr. Johana K. Cherui

Mrs. Grace G. Kimaru 2 1 3 2

Ms. Teresa Karanja 2 1 4 4

Ms. Marqaret Wamuyu 2 1 4 2

Prof. Walter O. Oyawa 2 1 3

Mr. Isaac Odek 1 1 2 1

Mr. Georqe Ombua 1 1

Dr. Eliud K. Kire er 2 1 2 1

Other Board information

The KALRO Board of Management is answerable to the Government through the parent

Ministry. The board signs i Performance Contract (PC) every financial year with the

Government through the same Ministry outlining performance targets in line with the above

stated functions. The signed PC is monitored and evaluated periodically and at the end on the

contract term.

Board Committees

To effectively discharge its mandate, the Board established committees with speciflc terms of

reference.
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The Board appointed into committees, members with requisite skills and competence to
discharge allocated responsibilities. In the event that a committee lacked specific skills within its
membership, the Board, with the approval of the oversight body, co-opt skilled non-Board
members to serve on the committee, provided that the chair of a committee shall not be a co-
opted member or the chairperson of the Board. The Board may, from time to time, rotate
Board members between the Committees.
The Board remains collectively responsible for the decisions and actions taken by any
committee. A committee may only perform the tasks delegated to it by the Board and may not
exceed the authority or powers of the Board.

The chairperson of each committee, in consultation with the Board, determined the frequency
of committee meetings as is necessary to fulfill the committee! functions. The Chairperson of
each committee, in consultation with management, developed the committee,s agenda. The
Board however determined the procedure and process within which comm-ittees take
independent professional advice at the organization,s expense.
The committees promptly reported to the Board any actions taken for ratification and any major
developments that they become aware of. The Board as set out in the terms of reference of the
respective committees, received reports of the committee,s findings and actions.

The Board established the following standing committees: -
i. Audit, Risk and Governance,
ii. Finance and Administration,
iii. Research, Technical and Innovation

The organization may establish any other ad hoc committees to handle any special business.
The above committees permit and facilitate more in-depth deliberations on issues that would
otherwise, not be possible in a normal full Board 14eetings. The committees undertake
preliminary discussions of the business of the board and prepare their resolutions for
deliberations and adoption by the full Board l'leetings. A decision of any of the committees
only becomes efFective after it has been approved and confirmed by the fuli board.

Communication

The Board receives management reports in advance of all scheduled meetings and in turn
formally, communicates to staff through the Director General. Informal commuriication to staff
may be made during Board meetings while in the Organization. Board members cannot commit
the Board in any way when having informal communication with staff.
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d) Material arnears in statutola and other financial obligations
KALRO is faced with liability relating to NSSF penalty for the period January 1998 to
January 2008 which amounted to Ksh. 206.49million. I(ALRO continues to settle the
obligation and the amount outstanding as at 30n lune 2023 was Kshs.11.89 million.

This is recognized in the financial statement as a liability.
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Ix. ENVIROMENTALANDSUSTATNABILITY REPORTING STATEMENT

Demand of agricultural technologies and increased consumption of agricultural products
obligates KALRO to provide demand-driven solutions to agricultural challenges locally,
regionally and internationally through cutting-edge research. These is achieved through
observation of the organization's core values, namely; customer focus, professionalism,
Integrity, Innovativeness, collaboration and Environmental consciousness. Below is an
outline of the organization's policies and activities that promote sustainability:

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

Being the premier agricultural and livestock research organization in Kenya, KALRo is
obligated to provide demand-driven solutions to agricultural challenges locally,
regionally and internationally through cutting-edge research. Thus, KALRo not only
focuses on addressing the national challenges but also lead globally through
partnerships, collaboration and networking to generate technology and innovations.
KALRO is guided by its Vision "Excellence in agricultural and livestock research towards
transformed livelihoods"; and Mission "To conduct agricultural research through
application of science, technology and innovation to catalyse sustainable growth and
development in agriculture and livestock product value chains,,.

ii) Environmental performance

a) Environment policy
sustainability is a guiding influence for all KALRO research programs. It is based on a
simple principle: Everything that we need for our survival and well-being depends either
directly or indirectly, on our natural environment. To pursue sustainability is to create
and maintain the conditions under which the Kenyan communities can exist in
productive harmony to support present and future generations.

The organizations pursuit for Environmental sustainability in anchored in law. we
integrate environmental considerations in our operations to fulfil the requirement of a
clean, healthy and sustainable environment for all as per article 42 of the constitution
and EMCA cap 387. KALRo also has a draft Environment policy domesticated from the
'National Environment Policy-2013', that guides its research activities to adopt and
maintain good practices that contribute to the quality of environment on a long-term
basis.

b) Successes
Institutionalization and mainstreaming of environment issues by creating an office that
coordinates and oversees environment sustainability issues. This ensures that
environmental issues are integrated in all research undertaken by KALRO.
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KALRO established in 2021 an Annual KALRO Tree plantinq day where all staff in the

headquafters, Institute and centre's participate in tree planting. The 2023 KALRO Tree

planting Day was observed on 21st April 2023. Similarly, KALRO collaborates with
partners to participate in the world Environment Day (held every year on the 5th June),

the world Day to combat Drought and Desertification (held every year on 17th June)

and the National Annual Tree planting day as called out by the Ministry of Environment,

Climate Change and Forestry. During the 2022-23 FY over 236,390 assorted trees were
planted by the stafF and stakeholders during various events and tree planting days.

The Organization also maintalns fruit and tree nurseries located in more than 30

Centres/Sub-centres which also serve in KALRO's CSR activities, e.g. Horticulture

Research Institute (HRI), Tea Research Institute (TRI), Coffee Research Institute (CRI),

Sugar Research Institute (SRI), Food Crops Research Institute (FCRI), Dairy Research

Institute (DRI), Agricultural Mechanization Research Institute (AMRI), Non-Ruminant

Research Institute (NRI), Apiculture and Beneficial Insects Research Institute (ABIRI),

Industrial Crops Research Institute (ICRI), and their Centre's. The nurseries have a

cumulative capacity of 2 million seedlings, which can be up-scaled based on demand.

For better land, soil and water health. KALRO collects and also receives soils, leaf,

fertilizers, manures and water samples at its referral laboratories at KALRO Kabete, aS

well as in other Institute laboratories, e.g. TRl-Kericho, CRI-Ruiru, SRI-Kibos, NRI-

Kakamega, FCRI-Muguga, FCRI-Embu, FCRI-Kisii, and FCRI Alupe' These laboratories

make recommendations to farmers on the health status of the soils and managemenu

recommended fertilizer use; crops suitability using leaf analysis; promotion of efflcient
drip irrigation for water conservation. The Land-use planning section of KALRO-Kabete

also has a GIS laboratory that develops the soil and crop suitability digital maps when

samples collected in the field contain GPS coordinates.

Soil conservation measures. KALRO has been upscaling several technologies aimed at
managing soil erosion challenges. These include; terracing, in-situ and ex-situ water
harvesting, conservation agriculture, mulching, etc

c) Shortcomings
Whereas KALRO has vast research land in the various Centres, there are limited

flnancial resources to scale up the environmental related activities'

d) Efforts to manage biodiversitY
KALRO through the Genetic Resources Research Institute (GERRI) has conserved

various plant accessions that can be used in future. Other effotts to conserve

biodiversity include; in-situ sites at TRI, CRI and SRI. Through its activities like field

days, farmer demonstration and trainlngs, the organization also creates awareness to
its stakeholders on the importance of biodiversity.
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e) Waste management policy
The organization promotes waste separation at source in the various Institutes and
centreS. some of the waste is incinerated at source and some is taken to licensed
incinerators. The KALRO Waste Disposal guidelines is as prescribed in the
Environmental policy.

f) Effofts to reduce environmental impact of the Organization,s products.
To reduce the environmental impact of the organizations products, Climate Smart
Agricultural (CSA) practices and Good Agricultural Practices (GAp) are promoted in ail
the farming systems. These practices aim at optimizing production and at the same
time conserving the environment. Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is done for
all major projects and programs that may have an environmental impact, In many
cases controlled trials are undertaken to minimize or reduce any negative environment
externalities.

iii) Employee welfare

KALRO has a Human Resource Policy & Procedures Manual developed to support
service delivery, commitments and obligations of the Kenya Agricultural & Livestock
Research Organization (KALRO) to the targeted beneficiaries. The manual sets the
guidelines on recruitment and selection of members of staff, management and
development of human resource in the Organlzation. It is also the official means for the
Organization to communicate its policies on human resource management related
matters

iv) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

KALRO enhances responsible supply chain and supplier relations through;

a. Making good use of government procurement policies and rules through
adaptation and adherence to Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act (ppADA)
revised edition 2016 and its regulations of 2020 and any other circulars.

b. Establishing a strong Procurement Management Framework through mapping out
workflows, and building out Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs).

c. Ensuring transparency in all organizational Procurement through managing and
updating the approved supplier lists often, keeping contact information of reliable
suppliers while staying on the lookout for new contacts and opportunities.

d. Conducting audits frequently. This is done through subjecting suppliers to high
standards and evaluating their performance (appraisals) regularly to ensure
they're meeting organization demands at competitive rates

e. Engaging Suppliers through Strategic supplier relationships. This is achieved by
building a solid relationship, integrating with suppliers by ensuring vendors
deliver reliable, high-quality goods and services on time and at the best rate.
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VIIT. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a) Operational peformance

During the Financial Year 2022123, KALRO implemented various projects and programmes

undeithe Crops and Livestock Research as discussed in detail in the report of the directors. The

Programmes were mainly funded through Government grants, Development partners and

internally generated funds.

Government grants were mainly used for personnel emoluments, operations and maintenance.

Donor funds were used for research technologies in line with partnership agreements. Internally
generated funds were used to cater for utility bills and ploughed back to generate revenue

b) Financial performance
i. Funding trends

The following is a summary of the Income organization received in the last five years;

Funding Trend

s
v
E
cao
E

5,Om,om,mo
4,500,0m,mo
4,00,0m,m0
3,5@,0@,@O
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202212023 (Kshs.) 202V2022 (Kshs.) 2020/2021 (Kshs.) 2019/2020 (Kshs. ) 2018/2019 {Kshs.}

Flnanclal Year

Source of
Funds

202212023
(Kshs.)

2O2tl2022
(Kshs,)

2O2Ol2O2L
(Kshs.)

2OL9l2OZO
(Kshs,)

2018/2019
(Kshs.)

GoK Funds 4,190,068,7 49 4,396,7 14,989 4,534,643,420 4,199,451,130 4,253,7 40,000

Donor funds 1,735,147,390 7,617,359,474 2,086,566,905 7,103,777,575 7,028,292,5t4

Internally
Generated
Revenue

848,930,544 797,953,098 818,259,456 938,341,409 888,573,027

Total
Revenue

5,774,14O,5A3 6,812,027,561 7,439,469,79t 6,241,58O,1L4 6,17O,705,54L
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ii. Expenditure trends
The following is a summary of the expenditure in the last flve years;

Expenses Trend

-
.E
c
=o
E

5,0m,mo,mo

4,Om,mo,m0

3,0m,mo,mo

2,0m,mqmo

1,0@,mo,m0 I I
202212023 lKshs.) 202V2022 lKshs.) 2o2ol2021 (Kshs.) 2019/2020 ((shs.)

Flnanclal Year

2018/2019 (Kshs.)

.nrc.tu .&a.,o!r.c.tr t!.rd&r-'r .xdrr- .!e-bbr^dr*b.

The staff costs increased during the year under review as compared to 2O2ll22 Fy.

Administrative costs caters for research materials, travelling and accommodation, farm
development, fuel and lubricants supplies for production, laboratory materials, utilities cost,
repairs and maintenance, contracted services, finance costs, property & staff insurance,
purchase of animals & seeds, farmer grants, office running expenses, cafeteria expenses,
security expenses, Iegal dues and provision for bad debts.

Board expenses caters for sitting allowances, travelling and accommodation and honorarium.

c) Compliance with statutory requirements
During the current financial year, KALRo complied with all the statutory requirements and
remitted all taxes due in good time. There was no penalty for failure to comply with the
statutory requirements.

Expenses 202212023
(Kshs.)

2O2tl2022
(lGhs.)

2O2O l2O2t
(Kshs.)

2OL9l2O2O
(Kshs.)

2018/2019
(Kshs,)

Staff Costs 4,377,996,436 4 t747 ,ZLs t77 7 4,325,254,026 4,468,850,s95 3,839,385,842
Administrative Costs 2,737 ,202,384 2,235,270,959 2,3t6,292,036 1,704,6t3,365 1,820,038,861
Board Expenses 3,842,209 12,582,898 5,962,487 73,408,978 5,827,O27

Audit Fees 4,17 4,680 3,800,000 4,312,430 3,800,000 5,749,844
Depreciation &
Amortization

326,566,564 319,960,553 352,557,374 360,227,967 369,2y,021

Total 7,349,7A2,273 6,712,77O,18L 7,OO4,379,347 6,550,894,906 6,041,255,595
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Gentrc Venue and
intended
beneficiary

Nature of CSR event
(Environmental
conseruation, education,
health, community
welfare and staff
welfare )

Remarks

system, allowing the
community to practice
subsistence farming for one
year.

households.

KALRO Kiboko Makindu sub-
county Jamhuri
National Day
Celebrations

Donated 12 cartons of
Bottted drinking water

Support of the
National Event
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By automating procurement processes and other cognate departmental
procedures e.g. ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning).This ensures efficiency and

timely settlements of supplier thus honoring their credit perlods.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

KALRO seeks to pafticipate and contribute to the Social and Economic development of
local communlties we operate within through Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

activities. The CSR activities assist in building relationships with local communities,

internal and external stakeholders, and the society at large.

KALRO's CSR Policy is in with the strategic plan' It lays down guidelines and

mechanisms for adoption by the organization to carry out all CSR Projects/ Programs.

The policy guides the implementation of KALRO',s CSR activities intended to support

local communities on various socially suitable activities to enable high impact and

ensure measurable outcomes of the funds deployed towards such activities.

KALRO management, with the guidance of the strategic plan, sets aside funds for csR

activities. CSR Committees manage the planning and monitoring of expenditure of CSR

activities at the secretariat and center level.

All CSR activities undertaken in the financial year, July 1,2022, to June 30, 2023, were

implemented through a focused approach towards target beneficiaries for generating

maximum impact, with most of the activities being carried out in partnership with other

credible stakeholders.

During this 202212023 financial year, the organlzation supported various activities in

environment conservation, health, education, agriculture, staff, and commUnity welfare.

f

Centre Venue and
intended
beneficiary

Nature of CSR event
(Environmental
conservation, educationf
health, community
welfare and staff
welfare)

Remarks

KALRO MoIo Nyanda Primary
School.

KALRO Molo has donated
part of its land occupied by
Nyanda Primary School.

This leads to an
increased literacy
level in the
community.
The current number
of pupils is 300.

Surrounding
Community

Improve the community's
livelihood through a shamba

There are 135
benefiting
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XI. STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Section 14 of the State
Corporations Act, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of that
organization, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the organization at the
end of the financial year/period and the operating results of the organization for that
year/period. The Directors are also required to ensure that the organization keeps proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
organization. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the organization.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the organization's financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the organization for and as
at the end of the financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i)
maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to
be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which
disclose with reasonable accurary at any time the flnancial position of the organization; (iii)
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the organization;
(v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the organlzation's financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in
the manner required by the PFM Act and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the
opinion that the organization's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
organization's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the
organization's financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness
of the accounting records maintained for the organization, which have been relied upon in the
preparation of the organization's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of
internal financial control,

With effect from lst )uly 2014, Kenya Agricultural Research Institute (KARI), Kenya Sugar
Research Foundation (KESREF), Tea Research Foundation (TRF) and Coffee Research
Foundation (CRF), were dissolved in pursuant to the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research
Act, 2013. Its newly acquired name is Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Organization
(KALRO). This will not affect the organization going concern for at Ieast the next twelve months
from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements
The KALRO flnancial statements were approved by the Board on
signed on i behalf by:

Hon. Pete Weru Kinyua

x 01 &o13 and

Eliud K. Kireger (PhD, OGW)

Director GeneralChairman, KALRO BoM
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X. REPORTOFTHEDIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended lune 30t 2023 | which show the state of the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research
Organization (KALRO) affal rs.

a) Principalactivities

The principal mandate of KALRO is to undertake, streamline, coordinate and regulate all aspects
of research in agriculture and livestock development, and promote the application of the
research flndings, technologies and innovations

b) Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30,2023, are set out on page 1 to 6

c) Directors

The members of the Board of Dlrectors who served during the year are shown on page X-XII.
During the financial year, Mr. Wilfred Rotich and Mrs. Mary Mwambia retired in October 2022,
while Dr. Samuel Mburu was de-gazetted in August 2022 and in his place Dr. Mukiri Wa
Githendu was appointed wlth effect from 3'd August 2022. Hon. Peter W. Kinyua was appointed
as Board Chairman wef 30th lune 2023 and Mr. lohana K. Cheruiyot on 22nd May 2023,
replacing Mr. Rotich and Mrs. Mwambia respectively.

d) Surplus remission

In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management (National
Government) Regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per
centum of its surplus funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each
financial year. KALRO being an non regulatory entity hence no remittance to the Consolidated
Fund

e) Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the KALRO in accordance with
Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Name: E. K. Kireger (PhD, OGW) Signature
Secretary to the Board

,*" a9/oqhoz3
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA AGRICULTURAL AND
LIVESTOCK RESEARCH ORGANIZATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lavyfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevanl laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Kenya Agricultural and
Livestock Research Organization (KALRO) set out on pages 1 to 24, which comprise of
the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement

Report of the ,4uditor-Generql on Kenl'o .4gricukurol und Livestock Reseorch Organi:ation /or the yeor ended
30 Junc. 2023



of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research
Organization as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research
Act, 2013 and the Public Finance Management Ac|2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

L Unaccounted for Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.641 ,977,000 and as disclosed in Note 22 to the financaal statements. However, as
previously reported, the cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.641 ,977,000
(2022 - Kshs.1,443,703,000) excludes cash withdrawals totalling Kshs.6,914,345 made
in the financial year 200912010 in respect of the Sugar Research lnstitute against which
the related supporting documents were not provided for audit. Although Management
indicated that the missing documents were a subject of investigation by the Sugar
Research lnstitute and other arms of Government, the amount remains unaccounted for,
and the status of investigations was not disclosed.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.641 ,977,000 could not be confirmed.

2. Long Outstanding Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivable from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.250,949,000 as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. This
balance includes amounts due from Kenya Seed Company, Bungoma Union, Mugama
Co-op Union, unsupported prepayments, rent due and other receivables of
Kshs.19,945,000, Kshs.745,531.85 Kshs.1,862,901, Kshs.1,171,000, Kshs.6,283,884
and Kshs.147,095,084 respectively all totalling to Kshs.177,103,580 that have remained
outstanding more than two years.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of the receivables from exchange
transactions totalling Kshs.1 77,103,580,000 could not be confirmed.

3. Long Outstanding Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.699,342,000 which includes commodity levy of Kshs.314,497,000 as
disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements. lncluded in the commodity levy are
balances due from Nyambene Mills (in receivership), Coffee Board of Kenya and Kenya
Planters Co-operative Union (KPCU) of Kshs.7,073,687, Kshs.23,445,000 and
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Kshs.124,496,000 respectively. These balances have been outstanding for more than
four (4) years. Although Management has madea full provision of Kshs.124,496,000 in
respect of KPCU debt and fonrvarded a claim to the receiver Manager of Nyambene Mills
(in receivership), no progress has been reported towards recovery of this debt and
provision made for the other long outstanding debts appears inadequate.

Further, the balance includes outstanding staff advances and outstanding imprests of
Kshs.1 ,499,026.95 and Kshs.76,873,163 out of which balances totalling Kshs.1 ,499,026
and Kshs.1 3,695,954 have been outstanding for more than three (3) years and one year
respectively.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of the receivables from
non-exchange transactions balance of Kshs.699,342,000 could not be confirmed.

4. Unresolved Land Matters

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.24,106,637,000 which includes Kshs.18,208,626,000 in respect of land as
disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements. Review of records revealed that
Management had not resolved previous years land issues as detailed below:

i. As previously reported, land with a value of Kshs.400,000,000 and measuring 400
acres was allocated to the Kenya Agricultural Research lnstitute in 2011. However,
Management did not provide for audit, ownership documents for the parcel of land.

ii. As previously reported, included in the property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.24,106,637,000 (2022 - Kshs.24,123,928,000) as at 30 June,2023 was an
amount of Kshs.2,932,785,960 in respect of six (6) parcels of land owned by the
former Kenya Agricultural Research lnstitute which did not have ownership
documents.

iii. Further, part of the Organization's land and another parcel measuring approximately
100 hectares were illegally acquired by informal developers in the year 2000. Further,
part of this land was used as a dumping site by a County Government and construction
of a power station was also taking place on the same land.

iv. ln January, 2011, some individuals invaded the Organization's land in Naivasha,
claiming ownership. The Organization filed a case in court to have them evicted, and
a ruling in favor of the Organization was made on 29 March, 2012, revoking their title.
However, the informal settlers had not vacated the land.

v. As reported in the previous years, fifty (56) parcels of land all under the Sugar
Research lnstitute did not have ownership documents.

vi. The property, plant and equipment balance exclude undetermined value of parcels of
land measuring 99 hectares and 127 hectares, which the Coffee Research lnstitute
used for farming. The titles to the parcels of land were in the name of the Coffee Board
of Kenya (CBK) which has since merged to form the Agricultural Food Authority.

vii. The Agricultural Mechanization Services (AMS) . a department within the Ministry of
Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries and Co-operatives occupied a portion of the
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Organization's land and had set up its own buildings. The Management clarified that
the value of the constructions/rmprovements by the AMS was not included in the
assets balance, and AMS was devolved from the National Government to the County
Government. The County Government had however, neither signed any lease
agreement nor paid any rent to the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research
Organization.

viii.The property, plant and equipment balance also exclude the value of twenty (20) acre
piece of land developed by the Tea Research lnstitute with an estimated value of
Kshs.8,430,634.

ix. The property, plant and equipment balance include an amount of Kshs.81,650,080,
being the value of buildings allocated to the Kenya Plant Health lnspectorate Service
in 1998.

x. The property, plant and equipment balance include the value of an office block
completed in the year 201212013 at a cost of Kshs.663,772,203 for Sugar Research
lnstitute. As previously reported, the valuation report amount was however,
Kshs.447,992,751 resulting in an overstatement of Kshs.215,779,452. No explanation
was provided on how the value of the new building dropped below the actual
construction cost with such a high margin.

xi. As reported in the previous year, the Organization's residential building at Kisii Sub-
Centre of Coffee Research lnstitute was taken over by the Kisii County Government
with no compensation to the Organization.

xii. lncluded in the value of land balance as at 30 June, 2023 was an amount of
Kshs.1 17,000,000 being the cost of land occupied by Coffee Research lnstitute.
Although Management indicated that the title deed was misplaced, evidence of steps
taken to replace the title deed was not provided.

xiii. KALRO owns 142.06 hectares which has a title deed but which has been encroached
by informal settlers making it impossible for the Organization to utilize the land for the
purposes of agricultural research.

xiv. lncluded in the balance of land of Kshs.1 8,208,626,000 is a beach plot valued at
Kshs.56,734,160. However, the Organization did not have a title deed for the land.
The Management explained that the land was illegally subdivided into five plots, but
the Commissioner of Lands revoked the allotments. A private developer filed a suit
in court to affirm ownership of the beach plots but the matter had not been determined
as at 30 June, 2023 and ownership of the plots could not be confirmed.

xv. The balance also excluded the value of a parcel of land on which five (5) buildings
are located in Kitale and staff houses belonging to the Non-Ruminant Centre in
Kakamega. The houses were constructed on twenty (20) acres of land that were left
out during allotment of the land to the Organization.

xvi. Further, included in the balance of land of Kshs.18,208,626,000 are 1418 hectares
of land where a National Beef Research Centre is located. Records held at the
Organization indicated that in 1984 a farmer surrendered t.vo hundred and thirty (230)
acres of his land to the Government, and it was agreed that he would be
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compensated with an equivalent acreage of vacant land at the Beef Research
lnstitute. The farmer was however allotted two hundred and seventy acres (270), an
excess of forty (40) acres. Further, the farmer violated the conditions of the land
exchange and occupied the developed part of the land leading to destruction of
property belonging to KALRO. The said part of the land had since been subdivided
into plots for sale to the public. ln addition, records provided indicated that another
farmer agreed to surrender three hundred and twenty (320) acres of his land in
Nakuru but during exchange and transfer he irregularly acquired an extra one
hundred and fifty-two (152) acres of KALRO's land. Additionally, informal settlers
have been trying to encroach the land since year 2014. Therc is a high risk that the
Organization may lose the disputed parts of its land.

xvii.The balance of land of Kshs.18,208,626,000 does not include the value of the parcels
of land situated in Msabaha in Kilifi, Njoro in Nakuru, five (5) parcels of land in Limuru,
Kiambu and a parcel of land in Alupe Sub-Centre, Busia.

xviii. Examination of various documents at Beef Research lnstitute in Lanet, Nakuru
County revealed that informal settlers have been encroaching the land. There is
therefore a high risk that the Organization may lose parts this land in Lanet. Further,
the County Government of Kisii had taken over part of the Organization land meant
for food Crop Research lnstitute Kisii. The County Government was constructing the
Governor's residence in approximately two acres of the grabbed land while a cancer
centre was illegally being constructed in another parcel estimated at one acre.

ln the circumstances, the ownership, completeness and accuracy of land balance of
Kshs.18,208,626,000 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research
Organization Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those mafters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, Management has not resolved the issues or given any
explanation for the failure to resolve them.
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of Value for Money

As previously reported, property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.24,106,637,000
includes value of Tea Research and Development Factory in Kericho. The Government
spent an amount of Kshs.304,505,436 on the project to completion but the facility is yet
to be commissioned and lies idle due to lack of funds to purchase machinery for
operationalization of the venture.

ln the circumstances, value for money was not obtained from the resources spent in the
construction of the factory.

2. Non-Operationalization of Agricultural Research Fund

The statement of financial performance reflects amounts of Kshs.50,000,000,
Kshs.1,120,706,000 and Kshs.614,436,000, being Government of Kenya, World Bank
and other Donors development funding respectively, for research activities for the year
ended 30 June, 2023. However, as previously reported, the Organization had not
operationalized the Agricultural Research Fund which should be managed by trustees
and support the operations of the organization, contrary to Section 39(1) of the Kenya
Agricultural and Livestock Research Act, 2013. The Act provides for the establishment of
a fund to be known as the Agricultural Research Fund.

Further, the Organization did not provide for audit, details of research grants obtained
during the year under review and their respective agreements, outcomes of concluded
research, distribution of the research outcomes and the custody over the research
outcomes.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Anomalies in Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Act, 2013

As previously reported, the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Act, 2013 had set
1 August, 2014 as the commencement date for the operation of the Organization. The
Act repealed the Science and Technology Act, 250, Coffee Act (No.9 of 2001), Sugar
Act, (2001) and the Tea Act, Cap 343 which had established the Kenya Agricultural
Research lnstitute (KARI), the Coffee Research Foundation (CRF), the Kenya Sugar
Research Foundation (KESREF) and the Tea Research Foundation (TRF), respectively.
However, other than the Kenya Agricultural Research lnstitute, which was operating
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under the Science and Technology Act Cap. 250 of the Laws of Kenya, the other
parastatals were operating under the Companies Act, Cap 486 of the Laws of Kenya.
According to Section 221(1\ of the then Companies Act, Cap. 486, an application to the
court for winding up of a Company shall be by petition presented, subject to the provisions
of this section, either by the Company, by any creditor or creditors (including any
contingent or prospective creditor or creditors), contributory or contributories, or by all or
any of those parties, together or separately.

Management, however, did not provide evidence that this provision of the Companies
Act, Cap 486 was complied with in the establishment of KALRO. Although Management
stated that the entities were not wound up but merged, this explanation seems to be in
contradiction with Section 56 of the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Act, 2013
which states that, any reference to the former institution in any written law or in any
contract, document or instrument of whatever nature shall, on the commencement of this
Act, be read and construed as a reference to the Organization. ln the absence of such
evidence therefore, the Coffee Research Foundation (CRF), the Tea Research
Foundation (TRF) and the Kenya Sugar Research Foundation (KESREF) are still legally
in existence.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Board not Fully Constituted

The statement of financial performance reflects board expenses amounting to
Kshs.3,842,000 and as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. Review of Board
payments and related records revealed that the Board had nine (9) members contrary to
Section 6 (1) of the Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Act, 2013 which provides
for twelve (12) members. No explanation was provided for the variance.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. Non-Maintenance of Staff Houses and Guest Rooms

The property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.24,106,637,000 includes buildings of
Kshs.5,336,831 ,000. However, physical inspection of the houses and guest rooms in
FCRC Embu, HRI Kandara, CRI Ruiru, AMRI Katumani, lCRl Mwea and NRI Kakamega,
in the month of February, 2023 revealed that most houses are dilapidated due to poor
maintenance. Revenue collected from the buildings is remitted to the headquarter in its
entirety leaving no allocation for repair and maintenance of the buildings. The condemned
houses occupy vast chunks of the organization's land leading to uneconomical use. This
is contrary to Regulation 139 (2) of the Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that the Accounting Officer of a national
government entity shall take full responsibility and ensure that proper control systems
exist for assets and that the Accounting Officer shall ensure that processes and
procedures both electronic and manual are in place for the effective, efficient, economical
and transparent use of the government entity's assets.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
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6. Sale of Assets without Assets Disposal Plan

The Organization disposed various assets valued at Kshs.22,146,000 during the financial
year ended 30 June, 2023. However, review of disposal documents provided for audit
revealed that the entity did not have annual assets disposal plan contrary to Section 53(4)
of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015. The Act states that all asset
disposals shall be planned by the Accounting Officer concerned through annual asset
disposal plan in a format set out in the Regulations.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities lhat
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Ageing Workforce and lnadequate Staffing

Review of human resource management records revealed that the Organization has
I ,725 oul of the authorized staff establishment of 3,612. An analysis of staff ages as at
30 June, 2023 revealed that 587o of the Organization's workforce was aged between
fifty-one (51) and sixty-five (65) years. However, detailed succession strategies that the
Organization had adopted to ensure retention of key skills in the Organization was not
provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the Organization's succession strategies to ensure retention of key
skills in the Organization could not be confirmed.

2. Delayed Approval of Procurement Transactions from Centers and lnstitutes

Review of KALRO Supply chain manual revealed that it does not conform to the Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020. However, no clear explanations
were availed as to why the research Organization has not amended its supply chain
manual since the release of the regulations on 22nd April, 2020.

Report of the Audilor-General on Kenya Agricultural and Livestock Research Orgonization for the year ended
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Further, Centers and lnstitutes experienced delays in approval of their submitted
procurement documents to Institutes and Headquarters for up to maximum of 94 days.

ln the circumstances, the delays may hamper operations and affect effective delivery of
goods and services to the respective departments.

3. Lack of Policy Guidelines on Production and Sales of Seeds

Review of KALRO AMRI, NRI Kakamega, and FCRC Mwea seed units revealed that the
centers engage farmers for production of seeds where contracted farmers are issued with
seeds during planting seasons and are expected to deliver specific quantities to the entity.
However, examination of documents provided for audit revealed the following anomalies:

i. Lack of binding contracts between KALRO AMRI, NRI Kakamega, and FCRC Mwea
seed units and contracted farmers, exposing the lnstitute and centers to potential
financial losses and litigation by farmers.

ii. Lack of sales and credit policy for seeds making it difficult to establish whether credit
sales are allowed by the institution and how the entity recovers overdue debts.

ln the circumstances, the entity may not be getting value for money from the sale of seeds
by the contracted farmers.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether processes
and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Organization's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Organization or to cease
operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the

Report of the Auditor-Aenerql on Kenya Agricultural and Liveslock Research Organizalion for lhe year ended
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activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities ttihich govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Organization's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Arlicle 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) ot the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and review of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7('l )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Agricultural qnd Livestock Research Organization for the 1'ear ended
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Organization's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Organization
to cease to continue to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Organization to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA e BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

25March,2024
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XI. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year endsd 30 Jun6 2023

Ths Financlal Statements set out on pagas 1 to 21 were signed on behalf ofthe Board of Directors by

ry
Hon. Peter Weru Klnyua
Chal]man,KALRO BoM

Wattge
Ms. Ebby Musimbl
Ass.Dlraqtgr,Flnance & Accounts
ICPAK Member Numbsr: lDA46

o.,",.a,i../Q?.hag-

Dr. Ellud K. KiBger, OGW
Dirgctor General

Dateo,,",).i./m.lapw

Nol€s
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs'000 Kshs'000'

Ravonuo ftom €xchange tran3actlons
Goods 544,506 421,091

S6rvic€s 7 201,U4 200,976

lnErest Rsceived 8,696 11,339

Other Receipb 9 94,685 164,548

848,931 797,953

Rovonuo tlom non-exchangg transacllons
GoK Recunent 10 4,140,069 4 314,715
GoK Dev8lopment 1'l 50,000 78,000

World Bank 12 1,120,706 966,718

Other Grants 13 614.436 650,641

s,92s,2't0 6,014,074

Total REvonue 6,774,141 6,812,028

Exponsos
Stafi Cosb 14 4,317,996 4,141,216

AdmlnlstraWe Costs 15 2,s39.108 2,U7,350
Board Exponses 16 3,U2 12,583

Ardit Fees 17 4,175 3,800

Oepreciation & tunortization expensB 18 326,567 319,961

Repalrs and Malntenance 19 '135.947 12'1,888

Confacted Services 20 47,604 55,200
Flnance Cosl 21 't4,544 10,773

Totrl Exponses 7 349,742 6,712,770

Surplus(Doriclt) (615,642) 99,257
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XII. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As 30th Juno 2023

Notes 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs'000 Kshs'000'

Asssts
Currenl A5sets
Cash and Cash equivalents 22 641.977 '1,443,703

Receivables lrom Exchanoe Transactions 23 250.949 491.084

Rec€lvables from Non€xchanqe Transaclions 24 699.342 412,954

PreDayments 102,269 90,739

lnventories 197.863 226.910

Deposits 27 2.585 2,s85

Total Cunsnt Assets 1,894,985 2.667.974

Non.currsnt Assets
Prooertv. Plant and EouiDment 2a 24,106,637 24.123.928
lnvesknents 724 682

lntanqible Assets 29 72,1M 49.005

Biolooical Assets 30 955.985 961,376

Total Non. Current Asseta 25.135.450 2s.134,99't

TotalAssots 27,030,435 27.802.966

Llabilltios
Current llablliti€s
Bank overdraft 32 20 20

Trade & Other Payables 33 232,182 170.214

Total Current Llabilltles 232,201 170,234

Non.Current llabllltles
Defened lncome 34 22',t.138 475,249

Total Non- Current Llabllitios 221,138 475,219

Total Llablllties 453,339 645,483

Net assets 26.577.096 27.157.4d3

General Reserve 731,245 1,346,887

Capital Fund 36 5,980.474 5,g/,5,219

Revaluation Reserve 38 19.865,377 19,865,377

Total Capltal and Reserves 26.577.095 27.157,183

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 21 were signed on behalf ot the Board of Dkectors by

Walle,u
Hon. Peter Weru Kinyua
chalrman,KALRO BoM

Ms. Ebby Muslmbl
Ass,Dlrgctor,Finance & Accounts
ICPAK Member Number: llfl{>

o",., &/sJaol3

Dr. Ellud K. Klreger, OGw
Dlrector General

Date atlpqh'ag Date
a>loohw
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XIII STAIEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET9

For sndsd 30 June 2023

The notss 8Et out on pages 6 to 2l form an integral parl of lhe financial statements

Notos CapltalFund Revaluatlon
Resorvo

General
R6sarvg

Totals

Ksh3'000' Ksh3 '000' Kshs'000' KEM'000'

At lst Julv 2021 5.926,912 19.865,377 1,U7,629 27,039,918

CaDital oranb r€ceivsd durinq the Period 18,307 18,307

SurDlus(oeilcit) for the psriod 99.257 99,257

Prior v6ar adlustrnents
2022 5.945.219 19.865.377 1,346.887 27.157.483

Al lst July 2022 5,945,219 19,865,377 1,346,887 27,167,483

rsceivod du the erlod 35,255 35,255

SurDlus/(D€flcit) for th8 period (615.642) (615.842)

At30Jun 2023 5.980.474 ,9.865.377 731,245 26.577.096
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XIV STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW

As at 30th Juno 2023

2022.2023 2021-2022
Notes Kshs'000 Xshs'000

Cash FlolY from Operatlng Actlvltie3
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (266.314) 243,471
N h rated used ln activitl€s (258.314) 243,471

Cash flow from lnvestln Activltles
Revaluation of Bio ical assets 5.391 (102.048)
Purchase of ro nt& ur nt (260.905) (108.357)
Purchase of Intan ibls assets 29 (71,469) ft1.257\
Proc€Bds from sale of Assets 10.470

Loss on Valuation of lnvestments u2\ (172\
Cash n€ratod used ln lnvesti actlvities (316.555) (281.8341

Cash flow from Flnancln Activltles
ital Grant 35,255 18,307

Defened lncom c ital (254.111\ (37S.955)
Cash erated used I Flnancin actlvltles (2'18.857) (381.648)

lncrease in Cash and Cash E uivalent for the Year (801,726) (400.011)
Cash and Cssh Equlvalent al the Start oI the Year 1.443.703 1,843,713
Cash and Cash Equlvalent at thg End of the Year 22 6i11.977 1.443.703

The Financial Slatements set out on pages I to 21 wer6 signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by

ful,am
Hon. Peter Klnyua Dr. Ellud K. Kireger, OGW

Dirsctor GeneralChalrman,KALRO BoM

o",., >i fplh*rz

Ms. Ebby Muslmbl
Ass.Dlrector,Flnanca & Accounts
ICPAK Membsr NumuEr: I 0(-46

,.,",.8.q.1gq l?rl9 o"*, .al foq haz.
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XV. STATEMENT OF COMP ARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Revanue from non€xchangg transactlons

The notes set out on pages 6 to 21 form an integral parl of the financial statements.
Budget notog
1. Chang8 between orloinal and final budget is as a consequenc€ of budget adjustmBnt from Exchequer
2. The % incr€ase on r€venue recelved from other receipts is due to 6ale of bondgd and obsolete items
3. Th6 % decrBas8 in revenue from interest received is due decrease in bank balanc€s
4 .The incGase in rBvenue from other grants is as a result of increase in research collaborauons resulting to realization ot the

granb ftom donors ln the period
5, Th€ % incrBsse ln staff cost is due to implementation of thg succession strategies commenced with the recant appoint nent

staff 8frer approval to recruit was granted by the Public Servica Commisslon.

6. Ths % increase in sdminlstrative Costs is as a result ot TIMPs dissemination activitjes (backstopping of County Trainlng
of Tralners) 8nd submission of accountabiliues for advances lssued to tha collaboratjng lnstitutions for research work funded

under the World Bank-K6nya Climate Smart Project (KCSAP).ln addition lncrease in fuel cost contibuted to lncrease ln

administrativa cost.
7. Board expsnses underutilization against the budget was a result ol KALRO Borad not being fully constituted within ths period

8, Rspalr8 and maintainancs incrcass ',vas as a rosult take off of the refurbishing and/or Upgrading of Research
Facilitles and lnfrastructurE lunded under the Kenya Climate Smart Project

9. The % lncr6ase ln Bank charges (financs cost) is due to digitlsation of payments for prompt ssttlement of expenditures
10, Contrscl8d services decrease was as a result subssion of crops varieties KEPHIS for National Perlormancs Trials (NPT)

and Dlstinclness, Uniformity and Stability (DUNS)
11. Th6 resulting deficit in the statBment of financial performanc€ is due to submission ol accountabilities for advances issued

to the collaborating lnstituuons for research work funded under the World Bank following the expiry of the collaborating grant
award agreements in March 2023.Thls has resulted to reduction on other receivables

Orlglnal budgot Adlustnonts Flnal Budget Actual on
comparable

basls

PErtomance
dlffarsnce

'/o ol
utlllsatlon

2022-2023 2022.2023 2022.2023 2022.2023 2022-2023 2022-2023

Kshs'000 Kshs'000' Kshs'000' Kshs'000' Kshs'000'

A B C=(A+B) D E"(C-Dl F=D/C

R€venuo ftom exchange transacllons
Goods 6'15,000 (40,000) 575,000 544,506 (30,494) 95%

Servicas 165,000 40,000 205,000 201,044 (3,956) 980/6

lnterest Recaived 10,000 10,000 8,696 (1,304) 870/o

Ottrer Recsiptrs 90,000 90.000 94,685 4,685 '105%

Sub total

GoK Psrsonal Emoluments

880,000

4,315,000 (106,475)

880,000

4,208,525

848,931

4,140,069 (68,456)

96%

980/6

GOK t)av8lopment 124,000 (74,000) 50,000 50,000 'too%

World Bank 900,000 220,706 1,',t20,706 1,120,706 100%

Other Grants 592,000 592.000 6 t4,436 22,436 104%

Sub total 5,93'1,000 40,23'l 5,97'1,231 5,925,2',10 99%

TotalRevenue 6.81r.000 40.231 6.851.231 6,774,141 99%

Expenseg

Stafi Costs 4,089,197 300,000 4,389,197 4,317,996 71,200 98%

Administratlvo Costs 2,008,397 545.000 2,553,397 2,539,108 14,290 99%

Boad Beenses 20,000 20.000 3,U2 16,'158 19%

Aldit Fees 4,200 4,200 4,175 25 99%

Oeprsclation & Anortization 332,706 332,706 326,567 6,139 98%

Repairs 8nd MaintBnancs 130,000 5,800 135,800 135,947 1147) 100vo

Contraclsd Services 95,000 (43,000) 52,000 47,604 4,396 920/o

Finance cost 7,500 7,100 '14,600 14,544 1000/0

Capital Ep€nditurs (Developm 124,000 (74,000) 50,000 50,000 100%

Total Exp€n3sa 6.811.000 814,900 7.551.900 7.439.7A2 112.118 99%

Sumlu3/tDeflclt) (700.669) (665.642)
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XVI. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The organization's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporatjons Act, and
lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), The finsncial statements ar6 presented in Kenya shillings, tvhich is
the functional and reporting currency of the organization and all values are roundBd to the nearest thousand (Kshs. OOO), Tha
accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presenled.

The flnancial statements have been prepared on ths basis of historlcal cost, unless stated otheMise. The cash flow statement is
prepared using the direcl method. The financial statements are pEpared on acarual basis
3. Adoptlon of Now and R€vised Standards
l) New and amendEd 8tandards and Intorpretatlons in lssue effecflve ln the year onded 30 JunE 2023.

Standard Effectlve dats and lm act:
IPSAS 4l: Flnanclal
lnstrum6nls

Appllcablo: lst January 2023:
The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of financial assets
and llabilities that will present relevant and useful information to users offinancial statements for
their assessm€nt of lhe amounts, timing and uncertainty of an entity's futur€ cash flows.
IPSAS 41 provides users offinancial statements $/ith more usetul informa{on than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classitication and measurement modelfor financial assets that considers the
charac,teristics of the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held:

. Applying a single fol.ward-looking expected credit loss model that is applicable to a financlal
instruments subject to impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging arangaments in
scope ot the guidance. Th€ model develops a strong link between an enltfs risk management
strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as part of th€ risk management
strategy.

IPSA.S 42: Soclal
Benefits

Appllcablo: 'lst January 2023
Ths objectiv6 of this Standard is to improve ths relevance, faithful representativenBss and
comparability of the information that a reporting entity provides in its financisl statemenb aboul
social beneflts. The inlormation provided should help users of the financial statements and
general purpose financial reports assess:
(a) The nature of such social benellts provided by the entity;

(b) The key features of the opeEtion of those social ban€fit schemes: and
(c) The impacl of such social benefits provided on the Entitfs financlal performanc€, Iinancial
position and cash flows.

'1. Ganerallnformatlon

KALRO is established by and derives its authority and accountability from Kenya Agricullural and Livestock Research Act, No 17
of 2013. The orgnisation is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. Th€ entity'8 principal activity is
to undertake, strcamline, coordinate and regulate all aspecls of research in agriculture and livestock development, and pmmotB
the application of the research findings, technologies and innovations.

2. Stat€m€nt of compllance and basls of proparatlon - IPSAS I
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NOTES TO fHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll) Nsw and amend€d standards and lnterpr€tatlons ln lssua but not yet effectlve in the ysar ondgd 30 Juno 2023

lll. E$lv.doDtlon of .trrd.rdt
The Entity did not early - sdopt any new or amended standards in the financial year 2OZ2I2O23

vonvnuea
Amendmgnts to Other
IPSAS rosultlng from
IPSAS 41, Flnanclal
lnatrum€nts

Applicabl€: 'lst January 2023:
a) Anendments to IPSAS 5, to update th6 guidance related to the components of bonowing
costs which lr€rs lnadve(ontly omitt€d when IPSAS 4'l was issued.
b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, rBgarding illustrative examples on hedging and cr€dit risk which
wsrs inedvertenUy omltted when IPSAS 4l wag issued.
c) AmBndmgnts to IPSAS 30, to update the guidancs for accountjng tor financial guarantee
contEc{s which wore lnadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4'1 was issued.
Anendments to IPSAS 33, to updats ths guidance on classifying financial instrumBnts on initial

other lmprovements
to IPSAS

Appllcablo lst January 2023
.IPSAS 22 Disclosure ol Financial lnformation about the General Government Saclor.
Anendments to refer to ths latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).
.IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits
Now deletes ths term composite social security benefits as it is no longer delined in lPSAS.
.IPSAS 29: Flnsncial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Standard no longBr includsd in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 41
which is applicabl8 from 1st January 2023.

tPsAs 43 Appllcabl€ 'l st January 2025
The standard sets out the principles tor the recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosurB of leases. The oblective iE to ensure that lessees and lessonr prcvlde relevant
information in a mann6r that faithfully repr8sents those tEnsaction6. This informauon gives a
basis for users offinancial statemenls to sssess th6 effecl that leasss have on the financial
positlon, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.
Tha new standard rBquires entities to recogniss, measure and present lnformation on right of use
assets snd IEasE liabllities.

rPsAs 43
IPSAS ,14: Non-
Cursnt Assets H6ld
for Sale and
Dlscontlnued
Op€ratlons

Applicablo lst January 2025
The Standard requires,
Assets that meet the criteria to be classifled as held for sale lo be measured at tha low8r of
carrying amount and fairvalue less costs to sell and the depreciation of such sssets to cease
andi
Assets that meet ths criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presenEd separatety in the
statement offinancial position and the results of discontinued operatiorc to be presentBd
soparately in tha statement of finsnclal performance.

Standard Effectlve dato and Im
IPSAS 43 Applicable lst January 2025

Tho standard ssts out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of leases. The objecliv8 is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide rBievant
information in a manner that faithfully represents lhose transactions. This informaUon gives a
basis for us6rs of financial stalements to assess tha sffecl that ieases have on th6 financial
posiuon, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.
Tha ngw standard requirss entiti€s to recogniso, measura and present information on right of usg
assetB and l6es6 llabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non- Current
Assets H€ld for Salo
and Discontinued
Operatjons

Applicable 1Bt January 2025
Tho Standard requires;
Assets lhat meet the criteria to be classlfied as held for sale to be measurBd at lh6 lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease
and:
Assets that meet the criteria lo be classified as held for sale to be presented separately ln the
statem€nt of financial positjon and the results of discontinued operations to b6 presented
separately in the statement offinsncial perfomanca.

7
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NOTES TO THE FINArIrCIAL STAIEIttEVTS (Contlnued)
4. Summary of slgniflcant accountlng pollcles

a) Revsnue recognltlon

i) Revonue from non.€xchangg transactions - IPSAS 23

Transfers from oth€r govsmm6nt sntitles
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measuted at fair valuB 8nd recognized on
obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is fre6 from conditions and it is probable that th€
economic banefits or servic€ potentjal relatod to the asset will flo\u to the orgsnization and can bs measured reliably.

li) Revenue from exchange transactlons - IPSAS 9
Ronderlng of servlcos
Th€ organization recognizes ravenue from rendering of ssrvices only when it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potentjal associatEd viith the Uansaction will flow to the organization.When the outcom8 of the transact ion involving thE
rendering ot services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized
that are recoverable.

SalE of goods
Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognized when th€ significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, usually on delivery ofthe goods and when the amount ol revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the organization.

lntErest incom6
lnterest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial assst to that asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal
outstanding to determine interest income each period.

Rsntal lncome
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and included in revenue

b) Budget lnformation - IPSAS 24
The annual budget is pEpared on the acsual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are presented in a single statement to
determine the needs of the organization. As a r8sult of the adoption ofthe accrual basis for budgeung purposes, there ara no
basis, timing or organization differencss lhat would requirB reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the
amounts presented as a separate additjonal financial statement in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.
ThB period covered by the annual budget is the same as the period covered by ths financial statements.

c) Property, plant and equlpment - IPSAS l7
Allprop€rty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 8nd impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is dirscuy attributable to the acquisition of the items. All other repair and maintenance costs arB recognized in
surplus or deficit as incuned. Wh€re an asset is acquirad in a non-€xchange transaction for nil or nominat consideration the
asset is initially measured at its fairvalue.
Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at th€ end ofeach reporling period at fair value less costs to sell in
accordsnce with IPSAS 27.

Bearer plant are 'a living plant thatis used in tho production or supply of agricultural produca,is expected to bear produce for
more than one period has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for incidental scrap sales.This
includes Coff€e and Tea plants .

Before maturity, bearer plants are measured at their accumulated cost.Aller the bearer plants matures,KALRO measures the
bearer plants using either ths cost model or the revaluation model.
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NOTES fO THE FINAII CTAL SIAIEME VfS (Contlnued)
D€preciation is catculated to write off lhe cost orvaluatjon ol fixed assBb using th€ straight-line msthod at th6 following annual

ret6s

868rBr Plants
Motor vehicles and Motor es
Tractors
Plant and machln
Offic8 U ment

rs & Eleclronics
Fumiturs & fittin
Labo UI nt
lnfrastruclural Assets
Dopreciation will be charged in the year of acquisition and not chergod ln the year ot disposalofthe assel

d) lntanglblo assslE-IPSAS 3'l
lntangible assets acquirsd separately ar6 lnitially recognizod at cost. The cost of intangible assels acquired ln a non-oxchenge

tr8nsaclion is thelr fairvalu6 at the date of the exchang€. Following lnltial remgnltlon, lntangible aEs€ts ar8 carrled at mst l68s

any sccumulated amortization and accumulated impairment lossEs. lntemally gen€rated intanglbls sssets, excludlng capitallzsd
d€velopment costs, aro not capitalized and expenditure is reffecled in surplus or d€ficit ln tho p6riod in whlch ths expenditure ls

lncurred.

Ths usefullife of the intangible sssets ls assessed as finite and amortised over the usefuleconomic life and sssessed for
impairment whenever lhere is an indication that the intangible assBl may be impaired.The amortisatlon period (a period of
3y6ars) and ths amortisation m8thod for an intangible asset rvith a finite useful lifB is revieu/ed st l€ast at ths raporting date.

lntangible assets 33.33%

o) Ressarch and developmsnt costs
Tha organization expenses rEs€arch costs as incuned. Developm€nt costs on an individual projecl ar€ rBcognized as lntangible
ass€ts when the organization c€n demonstrate:

. Th€ tachnlcal feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for us€ or sale

. lts intenuon to completo and its ability to use or sall lhe asset

. How the asset will generate futurE Economic bsnefib or servics potential

' The availability of rBsourc€s to complote the asset
. The ability to measura reliably the expenditure during dovelopment
Following initial recognition of an asset, th6 asset is carrisd at cost less any accumulated amortiz8tion and accumulated
impalrment loss€s. Amodization of the asset begins when d€velopment is complete and the asset ls available for use. It is
amor[zed ov8r th6 period of expected futu16 benefit. During the poriod of developmsnl the asset ls tested for impairment
annuallywith any lmpairment losses recognlzed immediately in surplus or deficit.

0 lnYEntoriss - IPSAS 12
lnventory is measured at cost upon initial rocognition. To the extent lhat inventorywas recefuod through non€xchange
tr8nsac{ons (for no cost or for a nominal cost), th€ cost of the inventory ls its falr valu6 at th6 dato ot acqulsltion.

Alter initial recognilion, inventory is measurEd at the lo\.ver of cost and net realizabls value. Ho!rcver, to the extent that I class of
lnventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal ch8rge, that class of lnvEntory ls measurBd Et th6 lower of cost
and cunent replacement cost.

Net realizable value ls the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of opeftltions, less ths ostimated costs of completion and
tha €stimated costs necessary to make th8 sale, exchange, or distdbution.

lnventories arg racognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumptlon in the ordinary coursE of operauons of
ths Organization.

g) Naturo and purposB of resorvos

Th6 organization creates and maintains rsserves in lerms of specific r8quiremenE. organization to state the reserves maintained
and 8ppropriate policies adopted.

, nno/^

2.00%
25.00%
12.50o/o

12.50%
12.50%
33.33%
'12.50%
12.SOVo

25.00%
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NOTES TO THE HNAITCTAL SI/qfEntEMS (Continued)
h) Employeo beneflts - IPSAS 25
RBtlrBmsnt bsnefit plans
The organization provides reurement ben8fib for it8 employees. The rstirement schame is contributory with employee and
employer contributing as below on the basis of lhe Basic Salary,The entity's obligation under the scheme is limited to employee
and employer contributions

Emplovee Emolover
10% 200/.

ThB entity also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF).The entity's obligation under the scheme is
limited to employeo and employer contibutions.

i) Cash and cash Bquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank.Bank account balances include amounts held al various
commercial banks at the end of tha financialyear net of bank overdrafts. In the Statement of Financiat Position, bank ovedrafts
are included as bonowings under cunent liabilities.

D Comparatlve flgurEs

whers necessary comparative figures for lh6 previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured to conform to the
required changos ln presentation.

k) Forolgn curr€ncy transactlon3 IPSAS 4.

Transaclions in foreign cunencies are initially account€d for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of th6 transaction. Trad€
creditors or debtors denominated in foreign curency are reported at the statement offinancial position reporting date by applying
the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arislng from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at
rates different from those at which they werg iniually recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in thE
period in which lhey arise.

l) Subsequent events - IPSAS l4

There have bean no events subsequent to the flnancial year End with a significant impact on the linancial statements for ths year
ended June 30, 2023.

m) RolatEd Partl8 - IPSAS 20

ThB Organisation regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert contlol individually orjointly, or to
exercise significant lnfluenca over the Organisation, or vics versa. Th6 Government ot Kenya is the principal shareholder of the
entity, holding 100% of the entivs equity interestOther relatod partjes include the Par€nt Ministry( Ministry of Agriculture and
Livestock Development) and Board of Management ,Memb€rs of key management ar€ regarded as related parties and compdse
senior manageIs. No related party contracts or dealings rner€ exchanged during the year except lor eamings as employees.
Further, ths key management do not hold any specific interests. Allowances to members of the Board of Management are as
shoM (see Nota 16), while the three key management emoluments for lh6 year were Kshs 19.567million.This is included in the
staff costs.

n) Iaxes - IAS 12

The Organisation is only liable to income tax payable on interest and dividends received which are payable at sourc€.The
organjsation is exempt trom paying corporation tax.

o) Leases - IPSAS l3

The determination ofwhether an anangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the anangement and rcquires
an assessment ofwhether the fulfillment of ths anangement is dependent on the use of a specillc asset or assets and the
arang€ment cov9ys a right to use the asset.
Lesses 8re classified as financo leases whenever the terms ofthe lease transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownershlp
to the Organization aB the lessae, Allothsr leases aft) classified as operating leases.Whero the Organization is the lessee, the
total payments made under operating leases aro charged to the statement offinancial performanc€ on a straight line basis over
the period of the leas€.
p) Changes in accountlng policles and ostlmates - IPSAS 3

Th6 Organisation rocognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. Ihe effects of changes ln accounting
policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

10
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NOTES TO THE FiNAMTAL SfA IEII'EMS (Con$nued)
q) Flnanclal Rlsk Management Obrectlves and Pollcles

Ths Board has lnitiatsd and facilitated thB procBss that will seg the enhancsment ol risk mansgement The Board h88 an

inug,ateari"tm"nagementstfategy.Th6.Bosrd,sapproachtoriskmanaggmgntisbasodonriskgovemancestrUctures,risk
,",iig;"nipoli"i"j, risk identificaton, measurement, monitoring and reporting. Ths dsk managem€nt policies and systBms are

,ri",ri"J r"sri"rlv t. lnsure that they aie in tandBm with lhe mlcro and macro envlronment, regulatory guldellnes,industry

pr.J.", ,.1i 
"t 

ionaitions as wett ai the sarvices offered, ThE Board r€cognizas th6 critical role the risk management will

continuetoplayin.ilsendeavortocarryoutitsbuslnessinadynamicenviro.nment'TheBoardiscommittedtoensurothat
*rpoi"irgiror.n* and rtsk managlment ars deepty entrench€d in th6 Org8nlsetion and cultur€.

l) LlquldltY risk

Liquidity risk is thg rjsk that the Board wi not hav6 sufficient financisl r€sourcas to meet its obligations when they fall due or $'ill

t ri" to'Oo 
"o "t "r""ssive 

costs. This risk can arise from mismatches In tho Uming of cagh llows ftom.rar,/enue and capital/

op"r"tionar oumo*r, 
"ssets 

8nd liabilities according to thelr maturity profilos and can occur where cash flow streams have bean

OLconlnueO, etc. funding risk arises when th. necessary tiquldity to tund llliquid a$et positions cannot be mst at expected

c-i 
"no 

*rl"n r"qriredltne oojective of the liquidiry a;d tundi;g management is to ensurs that all forese€abl8 operational and

capital commltrnentexpenditure can be met under boih normsl and stressod condltions 8nd tho mismatch is controlled in line

with allowablo risk levels

The table shows tha undiscounted cash flows on the Organisation financial asssts and liabilities on the earlisst possible maturity

dat8. The liquidity rauoinFY 2022123 is 6.86(FY 2021122113'79\

Flnanclal Ass€ts
Bank and Cash Balanc6s
Rsceivables
Tota I Flnancial Ass€ts
Flnanclal LlabllltiEs

blss
Total Flnanclal Llsbilitlos
Not uld

uid Ratio

ll) Curency Rlsk

Cunency risk arises primarily from purchasing and ssles of goods and servlces frordto overseas or indirectly via local supplies'

ne 
"rn6ncy 

ast isrninimal as cash and cash equivalents held with banks 8r€ dominated in Kenya shillings 8nd theG are

minimal dealings in forsign cunency.

lli) Operatlonal risk
opdiJmi"iriiiii tr";sk of direct or indirect toss arlsing from a wlde vsriety ol causes associated with the organisstion's

pr[*r*",p""""""f , technology and infrastructure and from externaltactors other than crsdil market and liquidity risks such as
'tegat 

ana regutatory requiremenis and ganerally acceptable standards of corpo6te behavior'

ifi" org"ni;iion 
"""ks 

to ensure thatiey opeiational risks are m8naged in a timely 8nd effecUve manner through a tramework

of lolicies, proceOuras and tools to idenuty, assass. monitor and report such risks.The Organisation's objective ls to manage

opl13 on"t ri"r 
"o 

," to batance the avoidanca ol financial losses 8nd damsge to the organlsatjon's reputation wlth overall cost

€ifgcliv€ness and to avold control procedures that restrict lnitlatlve and creativity'

lv) complianco end Regulatory Risk
Com'p1h"cal"J 1egrtatory rEr inctriaes tne Ask of non-complianca with regulatory requirements. The organisation has complied

vlith all€xtemally imposed requirements throughout lhe year.

2021-2022Noto 2022-2023
Kshs '000KshE '000

1,443,683641,95722
904,03823 &24 950,291

2,347,7211,s92,248

170,214232,182
't70,2'14232,182

2.177.5051.360.067
13.796.86
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NOrES fO THE FINATVCTAI SIIrEI'EVIS (Con nued)
5) Slgnlflcant,ludgments and sources of 6stimation uncertaing _ tPSAS I
Estimates and Judgments are continually evaluated and ars bssed on historjcal experienc€ and olher factors, including
expectations of futurg ev€nts that aro belioved to be r8asonabls under the clrcumstances, Athough thes6 estimates are bas6d
0n the direclors' knowledge of cunent evenb 8nd aclions, actual results may differ from lhese esiimates.Th; esfimates ano
underlylng assumptions ere revlewed on En ongolng basls. Rovisions to acc-ountlng estimatBs are recognized in the perioo in
which the Bstimate 18 revlsed if the revislon 8fiacts only that period or in th8 period;fths revision ano rriture peaoos'ir tne
revision affects both curGnt 8nd tuture poriods.The key areas ofjudgments and sourcss ot uncertalnty in esiim"rion ar" 

"" 
r"r

out below:

l) Useful llvEs of property, plant and Equlpment

The Board mak6 estlmates ln determlning the depreciation rates for property and equipment. Ths rates used are Eet out in the
accounling policy (c) above for property 8nd aquipment.The Board reviews ihe estimaied usetut tives of ptant and;quipment ar
th€ end of each reporting psrlod. Durlng the financial year, no changBs to the useful livss were identified by the Boa;d.

li) Contlngent Llabmfles
As disclosed in these financial ststements, th€ Board is exposed to various contingent liabilities in the normalcourse of
business.Tha Board evaluato the status of these exposuI€s on a regular basis to ;ssess the probability ofthe Board incurnng
related liabilities. However, provlsions aro only mads in the financiafsbtements where, based on the tioard,s evaluation, apresent obligatlon h8s b€en €stablished.

lil) Provlslon for Doubtful DebtE
The organization rsvietrts its receivables portfolio to assess ths likelihood of impairment. provision for impairment of receivables
is established wien th6rs ls 8n objgctivo evidence that thB Board will not be able to collect all amounb jue. wherc necessary,
an estimation of the amounts inecoverablo is madB in that year at 5% ofthe portfolio. Provision for impalrment shall be
rccognized upon approv8l by the Board of Management.

Iv) Other provlslons
other provisions arB recognized when the Eoard has legal or constructive obligation as 8 result of past events, for which il is
probable that an oumow ofoconomlc beneflts will be required to setu6 the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made ol the
amount of the obligstion.

b

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs'000 Kshs '000

sh & Goats J 921 110
P s 381 2 u'l
Camels 69 76
Cows 229 26 778
Pou 101 150 108 86
Maize 17 006 lo 483

hum & Millets 24 817 14 053
Rice 2.758 OM
Root 8nd Tub€r 4 5S4 447

etables 830
Herbs 824
Beans 45 244 84 34
Fruits

1 947 1 181
Bananas

1 275 1 969
Wheat 500 3 8A7
Cassava 725 417
Seeds 94 837 48 759
Seedl 81 473 873
Trees and Plants 345
Manure 942 'l 638
Flrewood

1 843 1,417
FlowErs 't24

m 13 '15
Cotton 679 110
Fodder

1 848 43 333
Beet 70 76

12
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NOIES fO fHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fln

421 091

7. Services
2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Soil Ana s 15,433 16,840

Other Lab Sorvices s,097 5.082

Sale of JoumEls Periodicals
Hlre-Ground/Confu rBnc€ Facilities

177 432
61,780 76,447

ItiEs 10,833 9,513

Rant 65.358 6'1,628

Oth€r saMcES 42,364 31.034

Total 201,044 200

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

lntsresl Rccolved 8,696

Total 8.698

8. lntoro3t RecElved

11 339
tl 39

9. Other Rocol
2022-2023 2021-2022

Cafsteria lncom6
Guest Hous6 lncome

43.947 4A320
31,820 29,877

Bus lncoma 6.'129 5,131

Utiliti€s lncome 9.868 7,405

Sala of T8nder Documents 48

Grazin Fes 38 12

Ga Loss on h exch (13s) (28.418)

G LoBs on Bl ical assets (7.539) 102.048

Losa on Sal6 of Fix6d Pssets '10.470 0

Gain/(Loss) on Valuatlon of lnvestments 42 172

Totsl 94.685

10. GoK Peraonnel Emoluments
tnls rssonts GoK funds rBcsived from the Govemmgnt for nt of staff costs

202j2-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Grants-Porsonnal Emoluments 4.140,069 4,318,715

Total 4.t40.069 5

2S 6752A 055Milk
1123

339Tomato€s
't0 52'17 738

5 53 3Water
2 2382Oth6r Farm uca

'192 Ilncroass/Decrease in Stock
071 0Ssle of

128 212150 138CanB and Tsa SalesMlllin
Total

IIEEII
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NOIES TO THE FINAJVCTAL STAIEME VIS (Conatnued)
ll. GoK Oevelopmont Funds
This GoK funds receivod from the Govemment for develo ment of research activities

78 000
10 & 1'l.TransfoB from Mlnistrlss

12. Worl Bank

988 718

13. Oev€lopment Funds - Other Donors

These re ent rants received from various donors for research aclivities.

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs'000 rchs '000

Deve t Grant - EU 112,612 219.796
Dev6 nt Grant - USAID 7,370 2.346
Devel nt Grant - CIP 1,536
Devsl nt Grant - CIAT 20.815 3,682
Develo nt Grant - ICRAF 2.780
Develo nt Grant - FAO 8,259 2.933
Develo Bnt Grsnt - ILRI 32.456 26,877
Develo ment Grant - ICRISAT 687
Dev€ Granl - CIMMYT 49,850 50.966
Deve t Grant - NRF 5,110 5.031
Devel nt Grant - IDRC 30.800 16,027
Devel nt Grant - AGRA 8,260
Develo Grant - KCEP 3.175
Devalo ment Grants €ORNEL UNI 12.050 11.074
Oeve ent Grant - Oth8r Grants 335,115 295.471
Total 514.436 650.M1

I 4. Statf Costs
2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Basic Sala 2,194.538 2.031.96'1
Housg Allowance 547.637 561.638

86.816 s3,086

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs'000 Kshs '000

Grant -GoKDevElo 50,000 78.000
50.000Sub-Total

Name of th6
Entity s€ndlng

the grant

Amount
recognlzed to
Statement of

Comprshen3lve
lncome

K3h3,000

Amount
doforrod
Kshs '000

Amount
rocognlsed
ln capltal

fund
Kshs'000

Totalgrant
lncome

durlng the
year

Kshs '000

2022-2023 2021-2022

Ministry of
AgriculturB and
Livestock
Development

4,140,069 4,140,069 i|,140,059 4,318,715

Mlnlstry of
Agriculture and
Liv€stock
Development

50,000 50,000 50,000 78,000

Total 4.190.069 4.190.069 4.1s0.069 4.396.715

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

nt Fund - KCSAPDevel 1,120,706 966.718
Total '1,120.706

Other Personal Alowanca
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NOTES TO THE NNANCIAL STATEMENTS

,5, Admlnlstrative Costs

152,422150 677Commuter Allowance
4 020 4

Transfer Allowance
11 042396enses& Leave

3754461 754& PBnsion ContributionGratu
29 169 0s3

Medical NSES
201 132195Contractual E
381 463371 795CasualLabour

4 141
Total

2021-20222022-2023
Kshs '000Kshs '000

7 936138,292Fuels Oils and Lubricants
25 80111 909Vehicl6 lnsurance
I 1047 634Road Tax & Licenses I 95011.949Hire of Tra ort

4511 863Clea & shiFre n
83,92096,026es ProductionPurchase of Su

247 984Purch8se of Dru
602592Purchase of Sierra & Vaccines

23 882768mentFarm Dove
970Purchase of Fun I lnsecticide & S

54 1132 887Purchase of Fanr ln ut
27 0426,310StoresPurchase of Laborato

18 620Research Materials
20 0593Purchase of Animals

90& Non Pharmac€uticalPurchasa of Dressi
03810 847Purchase of Consumables Stores

'19,7451S 408Food and Ration
1 7591,308Hire Machine &E u

4 416 4 544ares & E mentToolsPurchase of Worksho
'13 555388 979Farmer Grants ClGs/CBOs

s2086 22Purchase of seed
40214Offico Statione
4631 066nsesCom ter

611 688Printi and Publish
8218,096and PubliciAdvertis
13465nses
646248,209Show, FieldFarmers Traini

1 12666Cafeteria Ex enses
150771Official Entertainment

61 16563,908conference and Seminars
61369'1Rent and Rates

8 't s112,791Commission and Honoraria
130.018'131 110ensesSecu
23,57119 414lnsulance -

458Uniforms and Cloth
600aSubscri tions to

50 734lnsurance-GPA&GL
740 72768 658Dail Subsistence Allowance

978788External Travels and Per Diem
81'1219 674Travel Costs r&Bus Mi

062 27 338Trainin
M53 934Water s

97 670102 822liesEle Su
s801,710Gas

13 u 17 033hone Ex
2Posta and Courier nses

15
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NOTES TO THE FINAIVC'IL SIATEMEIVTS

16, Board enses

17. Audit FE€s
These arg fees incurred b the lnstitute duri extemalaudits

18. Depreclatlon & Amortiza on ns6

19. Repalrs and malntsnanco
These refors to re alrs 8nd maintgnance on tho various assets ofthe anlsation

20. Contracted Professlonal Serulces

800

3l

0

Provision for bad debts 12 8S8 4 '155
Intemet Connections 887 40 206
Membershi Faes & Sub n 145 27 550

al Dues ftbitration & Com 9931 2 468
Total 2 53

2022-2023 2021-2022
Board

Kshs'000 Kshs '000sitri Allowance 2 080 4 711
Travell and Accomodation

1 361
Tele one Ailowance 28 84
Mil es 119 280
Honoraria

960
Trainin 70 3 't87
Total 3 2

2 047 350

2022-2023 202'l-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs'000

Audlt Fees 4 175 800
Total 175

2022.2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Buildin s 144 135 909
Plant and Machin 16 3S5 I 892
MotorVehlcles '11 s29 120

&BiMotor s 62 62
Lab & Scientific entu 30 939 2 840

uOffice & Com uter 46,019 40 oo2
Oflice Furniture& Fitti s 14 219 '17 053
lnfrastructu re treetliG/hses fences 18 586 1S 27
Amortization -Bearer Plants 4 04 4 04
Amortization.Sof,\,t ere 48 371 24 552
Total 67

2022-2023 202,t.2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

rs & Maintenance ofVehiclesRe al 282 38 647
RE airs & Maintenanc€ of Motor 340 753

air & Maintenancs of Build s & Stations 416 59 7
ir & Maintenancs of Water S lies and Pum 7 014 6 036r& Maintenance of Offico ut ment 395
G & Maintenance Labo UI ment 3 570 2 424
rs & Maintenanca FumitureRe 224 356

Maintenance of Plant and Machin 7 884 '10
Malntenance of Roads 537
MinorAlteration & Malntenance of Works 1 410 761
Total 135 947

Kshs'000 Kshs '000
Contracted Professional Services 47 604 55 00
Total 47

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Bank Ch
1 544 773,1

Total
1 544

l6

,t0 773
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iIOTES TO THE FINA,{CIAL SfAIEitE vIS (Con{nued)
2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Bank Balances 641,9n 1,443,703

Benk ov6rdraft (Note 32) (20) (20)

Total 5'11,957

22 CaBh and cash ulval6nt

1 683

Cash and cash uivalent are held in various banks as bBlow summ
Ksnya Commercial Bank 574,054 '1,305.697

NCBA Bank 9.987 4,000
ABSA Bank Kenya 4,700 7,387

National Bank of Kenya '16.532 82,407
Cooosratlva Bank of Kenva 28.696 34.318
Slanblc Bank Kenya 10,001 9.800
MPESA 7 92

Cash 0 1

Total 641.977 703

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Trade Dabtors 86.991 62.244
Kenvs SBed 19.945 19.945
PrBoavmants 1.171 1.171
Rent du6s 6,2U 6,86'1

Bunooma Union 746 746
Muqams CooD Union 1.863 1.863
Other ReceivablBs 147.095 424.O39
Provision for Doubtful D€bts ('13.146) (25.785)

Total 250.949

23 Rocoivables from Exchan Transactlons

491 084

2022-2023 2021-2022
rchs'000 Kshs '000

GoK racunent 300,000
Commodity Lew 314.497 314.497
Staff lmDrest 74,873 90,569
Staff advances 1,499 1.674
Coffee Board of Kenya 23.445 23.445
KPCU 124,496 124,496
Provlsion for Doubtful Debts (141.468) (141.727\

Total 699.342

24 Rocelvables from Non-exchan e Transactlons

412 954

25 Prspayments
These are prepayments on lnsurance covers taken by KALRO with commencement date of 1st October 2022 and 1sl January
2023 and expirin on 30th mber 2023

90 739

26 lnventorles

Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Consumables 92,364 83,608
Crop 105.840 143.643
Provision for obsoletB stock (34'l ) (341)
Total 197-863

27D osltg
2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Deoosits 2.585 2,585
Total 2.585

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs '000

lnsurance Premium 102,269 90.739
t02.259Total

l7
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NOTES TO irHE FINAMTAL SrArE[rEn rs pontlnued)

29 lntan lbls Assots
2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Ksh3 '000

Cost
At beoinnina of the vaar 336,410 265,154

Addition 71,469 71.257

At end of the vear 407.880 336,410

Amortlzation
At tnnln of the 287,405 262.854
Amoriization 48.371 24,552
At end of the year 335,776 287,405
Net Book Valuo 72.1M 005

30 Blol IcalAs3ots
2022-2023 2021-2022
K3hs'000 Kshs '000

As at lst July 961,376 859,328
Gain in Value durinq the vear (5,39't) 102,048
As at 30th Juno 955.985 981.376

Total 955.985 961.376

2022-2023 2021.2022
Kshs '000 Xshs'000

Ouoted lnvsstmonts:
'1.672 BATKenya PLC shares- 724 682

Other lnvestments:
KPCU Unsecurod Loan Stock
KPCU Redeem8ble Ordinary shares
Fairvalue is Kshs 0 (202112022 Kshs 0)
Total 721

3l lnvestments

682

The Kenya Planters Co.operative Union unsecured loan stocl and rgdeemsble ordinary shares are unquoted inveslments
classified as available for salE and measured at cost.Tho fair value of KPCU is estimated at zero as the Government has
liquidated KPCU.

For investrnsnts in equity share listed undsr nole 3'1 above, ths equity lnvesfnents is under the following categories:

Name of entlty
whers

invostment ls
held

No of sharos Nomlnal
valuo of
ahaI€s

Falr value of
aharo3

Falr value of
shalgs

Dlroct
shareholdlng

lndlrect
sharsholdlng

Effectlve
sharaholdlng

Cun€nt y€ar Prloryoar

% % % Kshs '000 Ksh3 '000
British American
Tobacco Kenya
PLC

0.0000167 0.0000167 17 724 682

0.0000167 0.0000167 17 724 682

Kstu'000

The fair valu6 ot BAT shares is dBterminod by reference to published pric€ quotation in the 8clive market (NSE).On 30th
June 2023, th€ shares traded at Kshs. 432.75 (202112022:Kshs.407.75) per share.

32 Bank Overdraft
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Bank overdraft 20
Total 20

t9
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NOrES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENrS (Continued)
33 Trads and Other bleg

170 214

34 Dotsrrod lncomo
Grants received from donors for specilic projects are classified as non-current liabilities. They aro carried at amortized cost ot
which amortjzation is recorded as other grants in proportion to expenditure incuned on the project over the lif€ of the project.

Descrlptlon 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs '000 Kshs'000

National Government
lntemational funders 221,138 47 5,249
Prior Year Adjustments-lnternational funders
Public contibutions and donalions
Total defsrred lncom6 221.138 4? 5,249

The deferred income movement is as follows
National

Govemmant
lntErnatlonal

lunders
PubUc

contrlbutlon
s and

Total Total

Xshs '000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000 K3hs '000 Kshs'000
Balance brought
forward

't99,607 275,642 475,249 855,204

Prior year
adjustment'
Additions 133.899 133.899 296,009
Transle6 to Capital
fund
Transfers to income
statement

(112,2Ut (275,6/,2') (387,926) (675,964)

Other transfers (84) (84)

Balanco carrlod
lorward

221,138 221,134 47 5,249

35 Goneral rssewo
2022-2023 2021.2022

Kshs'000 Kshs'000
Balance Brouoht FoMard as at 1 Julv 1,346,887 1.247.629
Sumlus/(Deficit) for the Year (6r5.642) 99.257
Balanco Canlgd Forward as at 30 Juno 731,24s 346 887

2021.20222022-?023
K3hs'000 Kshs'000

Trade Creditors '156,128 116,950
Statutory Deduciions 11,894 26.254
Other Cr6ditors 63,356 26,166
Rent Deposits 804 8M

232.142Total

20
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NOIES TO THE FINA,{C|AL STAIEIE VfS (Condnued)
36 Ca Italfund

2022-2023 2021-2022
K8tu '000 K3hs '000

Capital Funds Brouqht Folward as at 1st July 5,945,219 5,926,912
Ceoital Funds recolvod durino th6 vear 35.2ss '1s,307

Balancs Carri€d Forward as 8t 30th Juno 5.980.474 945 219

37 Reconclllatlon ol n lo3s lo cash rated frc used ln ratlons
2022-2023 2021-2022

lGhs'000 Kshs '000
Ca3h Flow from ODoratlno Actlvltles
SurDlus,/(Deficii) (815.642) 99.257
Adlustm€nt for:
DeDreciation a nd Amorlisation 328.557 319,961
Gain on Sale ol Fix6d Assots (10.470)

Ooeratlno Drollu(lG3) bofora vvorklno caDltal chanoos (299.5i151 419,218
Woriinq CaDltal adiu3tmsnts
Decraase /(l ncrease)in lnventories 29,047 (23.663)
Dscrease /(l ncreas€) ln R6ceivabl€s-Exchanq6 240,'t35 09.027\
Dgcr€86e /(lncrease)in Receivsbles-Non-Exchanoe (286.388) s.328
Decr6ase /(lncreas6) in Preoavments (11.530) 5,777
Incraase/(Decrease)in CunBnt liabilities 61,967 (84.162)
Nst chsnoos ln Worklno CaDltal 33.230 t175.7471
Cash generated from/(usod ln) oporatlons (266.3141 243.17'l

38 Revaluatlon leseflo
2022-2023 2021-20?2

Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Balance Brouoht Forward as a 1st Julv 19,865,377 'r9,865,377
Balance Carrl€d Forward as at 30th Juno 19.865.377 19 86 1

39 Provlslons for contlngont llablllties

(i)During the financialyear under r€view, li8bility relating to actual deficit as per the report on actuarial valuation of the Kenya
Agricultural and Livsstock Res8arch Organization Statr retirBmont b€nsfib Schemo indicated a valuation figure of
Kshs.274.653million as at 31st December 2020. lt is worlh noting that this figuro k6ep on changing ev€ry year and could not be
disclosed under trad6 payables as it r/ould mat€rially affect the working capital of the lnstitutg.

40 Events after the reportlng p€riod

There were no matgrial adjusting and non- adjusting events after th€ rsporting period

41 Ultimate and holdlng €ntlty

KALRO is a Semi- AJtonomous Govemment Agency under ths Ministry of Agricultu16 and Livestock Development. lts ultimato
parent is ths Government of Kenya.

42 Cun€ncy
Ths financial statements ara prosented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

2L
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APPENDIX I.PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOiII'ENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments that $ere provided to the auditor. We have nominated tocal
persons to resolve the vadous issues as shown below with the associated time f.ame within which we e)Qeci the issues to be resolved.

Reference
No. on tho
extemal

audit
ReDort

lssuo , Observatlona
from Audltot

Management comments Focal Point po6on
to aasolve the Esug

Statua: (Resolvod,
Not Rosolved)

TlmeframodPut a datq when
you orpoct ths lssue to be
resolved)

1.1 lJnaccounted for Cash The concemed Oflicers t{ere dismissed
lrom service on 2nd February 2011 .To
seek authority for write otr

H-Finance Pa.tially Resolved Dec-23

1.2 Dornant Accounts KALRO obtained National Treasury
Approval for closu16 ot alldormant
accounts and closed them

H-Finance Resolved Resolved

2 Receivables lrom
exchange Transactions

To seek authority for w'ite oft H-Finance Padially Resolved Dec-23

3 Receivables from non-
exchange Transaclions

To seek authority for write off H-Finance Partially Resolved t,ec-23

4.1 Unsupported Property
Plant & Equipment
without Title Deed

Follow up on acquisation of ownership
documeots ongoing

DG Partially Resotued Conlinous

4.2 lnaccurate Depreciation
and Amortisation
charge

Re-calculation of the depreciation charged
and amended the Financial Statements.

H-Finance Resolved Resolved

4.3 tJnresotued land
Matlers

Follow up on acquisation of ownership
documents onooinq

DG Partially Resolved Continous

6 Unsupported trade and
other payables balance

Details shedules detailing the make up
provided

H-Financa Resolved Sep23

7 ldle assets due to lack
of tunds

National Treasury engagement through the
Parent Ministry for tunding ofthe
completion of Tea Research Factory
through the Medium Term Sector
Framework pro@ss continues

H-Finance Partly Resolved Continous

I Non operationalisation
of ERP System

Continous capacity buiding and retooling
the staff is being conducted on day to day
basis

H-Finance Resolved Continous

22
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Hon, Peter ru Klnyua
chairman,KALRO Boil

Dr. Ellud K. Xlroger, OGW
Dlrector Genoral

at lmlaprl ,,r",.ail!.?:t?w
Date:

ReferEncs
No. on tho
external

audlt
n

lssuo , Obsorvations
Auditor

llanagemert comments Focal Polnt person
to rosolve tho lasu€

Status: (Resolved I
Not Resolv€d)

Tlmoframe:(Put a date whon
you oxpect the lssuo to bg
ra!olved)

I Non operationalisation
of Agricultural
Research Fund

KALRO undertook tho develoPment ot the

regulations for apProval by ths Ministry

betoro b€ Gazettod

DG Partly Resolved Continous

10 in KALRO
Act,2013

The profussional oplnion lrom the

Registrar ol ComPaniee is still being

followed

H-L6gal Not Resolved Continous

11 Ageing wgrkforce and

inadequate staffing
lmplementation of the succession

strategies commenced with tie recent

aoooi;trnent ot 224 new stafi afier approval

to recruit was granted by the Public SeMcs
Commission

H-Human Resourcas
Management &
Administration

Not Resolved Continous

)
23
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APPENOIX ll: PROJECTS IIPLEIEr{TED SY KALRO

P.olect
Mahr proje<rs implefiented by KALRO and tund€d bry d€velopmern pqiner!

Proioct thlo P.oloct Numbo, Donor Perlod/
dul'tlon

Oonor
commlttnenl
(Krhs'000)

S€p!6te donor rEportrng
rrquirod ar pertho donor
.g.romont (Yo!n{o)

conrolldated ln th6o
financial
at t menta(Y9lrNo)

1 Kenya Climot6.&n8rl Agricolturo Proied
(KCSAP)

Prcjed l.O. P1s4784 World Benk 6omorfis 3,923,880 YES YES

2 AGRIFI- Clirnete Smart Aoricuhural
Pmdudivity Proied (CS+PP)

FED/201 0,398{76 EU 6ornooths fi7,7Et) YES YES

Natbml Agriculturel Vslue Chain
DevebDmont Prciecl (}{AVCDP)

Prcie.i l.D. 176758 World Bank 60months ,(.900.fi)o YES YES

Pror.ct Tot l proioct
co.rlt(3h6'm0)

Total axpandad to
dato (Ksh.'Oq,')

Complegon
% to drte

Budget
(K.h!'000')

Actuat (lCh.'000) sourc€! ot funda

1 Kenya Clinato-Smart Agrillture Pojet:l
(KCSAP)

3,923,84O 3,860.080 98% 952,980 1,054,90e WORLD BANK

2 AGRIFF Clirnate Sman Agncullural
Produdn/fu Ploject (CS-APP)

738.115 175,7U 65% r 37,0,0O 112,612 EU

3 Nstional A€dqrltural Value Chain
Dev€loom€nt Pdect (I{AVCDP)

4.900,000 63,800 1 63,800 63,800 WORLO SANK

1.Tho Droied totalcost is th6 tolalfnanong for bolh the Donor and count6tPart(GoK)

(



I

r d 2

APPENDIX tll: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS Ksh'000

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the

Parent Ministry

KALROENTITY NAME:

Development and Agricultural Research
Department for CroPBreak down of transfers from the State

FY 2022123
Recurrent Grantsa

FY to which the
amounts relate

Amount
(Kshs'000')

Bank
Statement

Date
2022t23359,583,333AU -22
2022t23359,583,333Se 22
2022123359, 583,333Se -22
2022123359, 583,333Nov-22
2022t23359,583 333Dec-22
2A22123359,583,333Jan-23
2022123359,583,333Feb-23
2022123341,837,500Mar-23
2022123270,854,166r-23
2022123341,837,500Jun-23
2022123368,456,250Jun-23

3 840,068 749Total
ment GrantsDevelob

20221238,500Ocl-22
202212310,000Ocl-22
20221232,500Ocl-22
202212310,000Ocl-22
20221232,500Jun-23
202212310,000Jun-23
20221235,000Jun-23
20221231,500Jun-23

50,000Total

2022t2370,099Nov-22Grants from EUc

70,099

3 840,'188 848Total

I

I

I

25



__
Kenva Aoticullual end Liveslock Resoarch OQaniaalktn
Annual Re@ds aftl Financial Slaten€nls
for lhe vaar encled 30lh June 2023

APPENDIx lV: RECOROING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES (Ksh'000')

Name of the MOA
Transferring the funds

Date
r€ceived as

per bank
statement

Wher€ Recordedrrecoonized
Nature Total Amount Statement of

Financiel
Pedomanco

Capital
Fund

Deferred
lncome

Receivables Olfiers Total TransftE
during the Year

Ministry of Agriculture and
Livestock Oevelopment

Appendix lll Recurrent 4,140,069 3,840,069 300,000 3,840,069

Appendix lll Development 50,000 50,000 50,000
Appendix lll Grants 70.099 70.099 70,099

Ministry of Education-
National Research
Fund(NRF)

Oec-22 Research Funds 5,094 5,094 5,094

Agricultural Development
Corporation (ADC)

MaF23 Royalties 300 300 300

Kenya Seed Company Aug-22 Royalties 1,089 1,089 1 ,089

Apr-23 Royalties 4,750 4,750 4,750
Agt-23 Royalties 1,513 1,513 1,513

Kenya Climate Smart
Agriculture Project
(KCSAP)

Setr22 Research Funds 259.861 259,861 259,86r
od-22 Research Funds 99.999 99,999 99,999
od-22 Research Funds 171,183 171,183 171,183
Jan-23 Research Funds 256,926 256,926 256,926
Apt-23 Research Funds 55,000 55.000 55,000
Jun-23 Research Funds 2,094 2,O54 2,O84
Mar-23 Research Funds 275,642 275,U2 275,U2

National Agricultural
Value Chain
Development Proieci
(NAVCDP)

Jun-23 Research Funds 63,800 63,800 63,800

Total 5.457,420 5.093.620 339,442 300,000 4,aa1,778
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